
 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

04/01/2025 10:00 AM  
 

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 
 

AGENDA 
 

This meeting will be held in person and the public is welcome to attend. 
 
Members of the public who wish to watch the meeting remotely may do so by accessing the Storey 
County Clerk’s new YouTube channel. To access the Channel and the Live Stream: 

1. Open your browser and go to www.youtube.com/@storeycountyclerk 
2. Click on the Storey County seal   when it has the LIVE display,  

or click on the video picture for the meeting in the playlist under the county seal 
with the LIVE display on the graphic. 

 - Public comment may be made by in-person appearance only. -  

 
For additional information or supporting documents please contact the  

Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969. 
                                      

JAY CARMONA 
CHAIRMAN 
 
CLAY MITCHELL 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
DONALD GILMAN 
COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 

JIM HINDLE 
CLERK-TREASURER 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for 
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Health Board, Storey County Brothel 
License Board, Storey County Water and Sewer System Board, Storey County Highway Board and 
the Storey County Liquor and Licensing Board and during this meeting may convene as any of 
those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda. All matters listed under the 
consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of County 
Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or 
any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon 
separately during this meeting.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be 
taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 
the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the 
agenda at any time.   

http://www.youtube.com/@storeycountyclerk


The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time allotted for each individual to speak.  
Public comment is limited to three minutes per individual. 
 
All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless 
marked otherwise. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M. 

 
2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end of 

each meeting. These comments should be limited to matters not already on today’s calendar 
agenda. Public comment is again welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those comments 
should be limited to the agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per 
individual.  
 

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the April 1, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
6. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes from the March 4, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
I For possible action, approval of business license first readings: 

A. Brite Glass Inc. – Contractor  / 100 Gentry Way # C7 ~ Reno, NV 
B. Build Group, Inc. – Contractor / 2121 N California Blvd Ste. 301 ~ 
            Walnut Creek, Ca 
C. Crown Lift Trucks – Out of County / 44 S. Washington St. ~  
            New Bremen, OH 
D. Diversified Fall Protection – Contractor / 24400 Sperry Dr. ~  
            Westlake, OH 
E. GE Excavating – Contractor / 1123 Jo Lane ~ Gardnerville, NV 
F. HGI, Inc. – Professional / 503 Westlake Ave. N Ste 400 ~ Seattle, WA 
G. Hi Tech Commercial Service – Contractor / 1840 Stella Lake St. ~  
            Las Vegas, NV 
H. Horizon Equipment Repair – Out of County / 1606 Donna Way ~  
            Fernley, NV 
I. JP Fence LLC – Contractor / 16 Jones Rd. Ste. E ~ Mound House, NV 
J. Novo Logistics – General / 700 Milan ~ McCarran, NV 
K. Oxford Global Resources LLC – Out of County /  
            900 Cummings Center Ste. 326T ~ Beverly, MA 
L. Premier Drywall LLC – Contractor / 391 Smithridge Park ~ Reno, NV 



M. Prime Field Service Corp – Out of County / 575 W. 800 S. ~  
            Salt Lake City, UT 
N. Silver State Insulation LLC – Contractor / 105 Hercules Dr. ~ Sparks, NV 
O. TriiiForce LLC – Contractor / 1102 Reed Cir. ~ Fernley, NV 
P. United Fire Systems & Security LLC – Contractor / 2055 Helm Dr. ~  
            Las Vegas, NV 
Q. Universal Solar Direct – Contractor / 6555 S. Valley View Blvd. Unit 524 
            ~ Las Vegas, NV 
R.         Voda Cleaning & Restoration of Reno & Carson City – Out of County /  
             5655 Riggins Ct. Ste. 13 ~ Reno, NV  

 
II Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel policies 301 

Personnel Office Role in the Hiring Process; 302 Source of Candidates; Open 
Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible List to Vacant Positions; 303 Job 
Announcements; 304 Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants; 305 
Examination Process and Interviewing Applicants; and 306 
Applicant/Employee Reference Checks.  

 
8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports 

 
9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) 

 
10. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Tentative Budgets.  

 
11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to proclaim April 13, 2025, through April 
19, 2025, as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week.  

 
12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of an expenditure not to exceed $9,000 to 
the Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable 
property situated within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in 
Storey County for FY 2025-2026 pursuant to NRS 534.040(2).  

 
13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business 
Development to reallocate $1,500 of budgeted and available funds from the 
Professional Services account to sponsor the Western Nevada Development 
District Summit to be held in Virginia City, April 21 & 22, 2025.  

 
 
 
 
 



14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval authorizing Storey County staff to 
reallocate $32,360.50 originally allocated to cover the costs of an elevator design 
at St. Mary’s Art Center (SMAC) to instead be allocated to address the structural 
issues identified in the north kitchen, moisture mitigation, replacement of 
radiator controls, and service of the boiler system at SMAC.  

 
15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD 
 
16. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Fire District Tentative 
Budgets.  

 
17. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 
18. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Water and Sewer 
Tentative Budgets.  

 
19. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSING BOARD 

 
20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
For consideration and possible approval of the second reading for On-Sale 
Liquor License. Applicant is Jennifer Stoops, Maddy’s Place LLC, 55 North C 
Street, Virginia City, NV.  

 
21. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD 

 
22. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout 
Storey County.  

 
23. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
24. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of the Storey County Safety Manual, 
Annex B "Heat Illness Prevention Plan" as prepared by the Safety Committee.
  

 
 
 



 
25. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists 
regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but 
not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement 
programming, Senate bill(s) regarding regional planning Storey, Washoe, Lyon, 
Carson, Douglas, and cities, Daly; SB78 as potentially related to the Comstock 
Historic District Commission; AB77 tax abatement; AB32 V&T Railway; AB538 
GOED board members; AB528 Green energy abatement; SB410 health benefits; 
SB364 railroad abatements; bills supported by the Nevada Association of 
Counties (NACO); and bills proposed by the Governor and legislative 
leadership since the last board meeting.  

 
26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
For Consideration and possible approval of business license second readings: 
A. Bunting Magnetics Co. – Out of County / 500 S. Spencer Rd ~ 
            Newton, KS 
B. John Curran LLC – Out of County / 415 Keystone Dr. ~ Dayton, NV 
C. Nuwave International Industries Inc. – Contractor / 1875 Coronado Ave  
            ~ Signal Hill, CA 
D. SBI Roofing – Contractor / 4201 Trailblazer Loop ~ Roseville, CA 
E. Silver Sierra Cleaning LLC – Out of County / 4275 W th St. Apt 351 ~  
            Reno, NV 
F.         Tahoe Brothers Construction LLC – Contractor / 
            9475 Double R Blvd Ste. 10 ~ Reno, NV  

 
27. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end of 

each meeting. These comments should be limited to matters not already on today’s calendar 
agenda. Public comment is again welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those comments 
should be limited to the agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per 
individual.  
 

28. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
 
NOTICE: 

• Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings. 
• Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding 

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969. 
• Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear. 
• Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end of each meeting. These comments 

should be limited to matters not already on today’s calendar agenda. Public comment is again 
welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those comments should be limited to the 
agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per individual. 

• Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, 
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin. 



• In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from 
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including 
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, 
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for 
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all 
bases apply to all programs).  Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or 
incident. 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact 
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or 
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.  Additionally, program 
information may be made available in languages other than English.  
To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at 
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a 
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.  
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992.  Submit your completed form or 
letter to USDA by:  
 
(1) mail:  U.S. Department of Agriculture  
                 Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights  

           1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
           Washington, D.C. 20250-9410.  
 

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or  
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.  
 
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 
 

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special 
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in 
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:program.intake@usda.gov


 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

I, Drema Smith,  Administrative Assistant to Storey County, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused 
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 3/27/2025;  Storey County 
Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N 
C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, 
VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.  
This agenda was also posted to the Nevada State website at https://notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey 
County website at: https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter  
 
 
By ______________________________________ 
    Drema Smith 
    Administrative Assistant II           

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the April 1, 2025, meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes from the March 4, 2025,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department: Clerk & Treasurer     Contact Number: 7758470969

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        6



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING        

3/4/2025 10:00 AM   
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 

_________________________________________________________ 

MEETING MINUTES 

JAY CARMONA CLAY MITCHELL DONALD GILMAN 
CHAIRMAN VICE-CHAIRMAN COMMISSIONER

ANNE LANGER JIM HINDLE 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CLERK & TREASURER 

Roll Call 
Commissioners Carmona, Gilman and Mitchell present – quorum established 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Commission Chairman Jay Carmona called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.

2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Planning Commissioner Lee Sterrett gave information
on the last meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District Board. An agreement was
approved to do a study on the Gold Hill Drainage Master Plan, from the Divide through
Storey and Lyon counties. It is like the plan for Virginia City and Six Mile Canyon. Funding
will be through a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant.

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
agenda for the March 4, 2025, meeting.

County Manager Austin Osborne asked that Item #26 be removed from the agenda.

Public Comment: None



Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s agenda with the one noted 
change of removing Item # 26. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

6. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
minutes from the February 4, 2025, meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the minutes from our Feb. 4, 2025,
meeting as presented. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

7. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
I. For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. ABSCO Fire Protection LLC – Contractor / 9025 Spanish Trail ~ Sparks, NV
B. All Crane Service LLC – Out of County / 1000 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV
C. Crusoe Energy Systems, LLC – Out of County / 255 Fillmore St. Ste. 400 ~ Denver, CO
D. DeHart Recycling Equipment Inc. – Out of County / 11862 Missouri Bottom Rd. ~ Hazelwood, MO
E. Guzman & Sons Drywall LLC – Contractor / 5385 Jon. Dr. ~ Sun Valley, NV
F. Harrison Nevcon LLC – Contractor / 503 Sam Clemens ~ Dayton, NV
G. Kinetic Cutting Systems Inc. – Out of County / 10960 Zaiser Rd. ~ West Burlington, IA
H. ORR Protections Systems, Inc. – Contractor / 6761 Sierra Ct. Ste A ~Dublin, CA
I. Paul Davis Restoration of Reno & Lake Tahoe – Contractor / 650 Innovation Dr. Ste. A ~ Reno, NV
J. Sierra Design Concrete – Contractor / 130 Circuit Ct. ~ Sparks, NV
K. The Shrinkwrap Co., LLC – Out of County / 2400 Sharon Way ~ Reno, NV
L. WEIMA America Inc. – Out of County / 3678 Centre Cir. ~ Fort Mill, SC
M. X Burger – Food Truck / 984 Leah Cir ~ Reno, NV

II. Approval of claims in the amount of $4,916,959.73.

III. Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel Policy 1001 Disciplinary
Actions and Appeals.

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s Consent agenda as presented. 
Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Fire District
Assistant Chief Jim Morgan said the district closed escrow on the property for Station #75 in
the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.



Operations and Projects 
• Coordinator Mike Northan said the Lockwood Senior Center roof was complete and

storm drains and underground electrical are nearly complete.
• The backup generator has arrived for 800 South C St., and he is working with tenants to

arrange for the necessary power outage. Also, Coons Construction will be doing
construction at that site that could affect parking.

• The TRI restroom remodel is in design. There will be two modernized public restrooms
and a utility room.

• The Mark Twain Community Center storage building is in design.
• We are working with USDA and other funding sources to gather info required to develop

RFQs for the new jail and the TRI substation.

Administrative Officer 
• Lisa Maciel said the County hosted a dinner in Virginia City for members of  the

Legislature on Feb. 18. She thanked the Bonanza Cantina for catering.
• She will have the Facilities and Conditions Report in the next few weeks.
• She is working on a public meeting language access plan.

Emergency Management 
• Stacy York, speaking for Director Adam Wilson, said the recent Public Safety Town Hall

was well attended.
• Emergency Management in the Quad Counties met with NDOT on working together

during emergencies.
• Staff will meet with NVEnergy’s emergency management committee to better coordinate

activity during emergencies.

VCTC 
• Tourism Director Todd Tuttle said the upcoming Mountain Oyster Fry would be from 10

a.m. to 4 p.m. March 15. There will be lots of radio coverage, including live feeds. C
Street will be closed from Union to Taylor streets. Union Street from C to B streets will
be limited to pedestrian access. There are 14 cooks and 10 celebrity judges. Ticket sales
are strong. There is also the St. Patrick’s Day Parade at noon and the St. Paddy Made Me
Do It Saloon Crawl. There will also be a comedy act at Piper’s Opera House by Jen
Murphy, starting at 6:30 p.m.

• The Father-Daughter Day and Dance will be on April 12. There will be three dances, and
all are nearly sold out.

• The annual Grand Prix will be April 26-27.
• Chili on the Comstock will be May 17-18, and the Fast Car Rally will be held at the same

time.
• The Celebration of Heroes parade will be May 24, the Saturday of Memorial Day

Weekend.



• The next Mix and Mingle will be March 11th at 6 p.m. at Piper’s Opera House. Topics to 
be addressed at the meeting will be Dark Skies and the new Chamber of Commerce. 

 
Health and Community Services 
• Director Stacy York said from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. there will be a Battle of the Badges blood 

drive. 
• Two new community health workers have been hired and are getting their certifications 

to work on mental health issues in the county. 
 

County Manager’s Office 
• County Manager Austin Osborne said the respondent to the Piper’s Opera House RFQ 

and the County recognized that substantial work needs to be done and mutually agreed to 
put a pause on the deal. It will take a year to get repairs done, and then another RFQ will 
be issued. 

 
Clerk-Treasurer 
• Clerk-Treasurer Jim Hindle said the local Vehicle Registration window will open 

Tuesday, March 11. Hours will be from 9 a.m. to noon and 1 p.m. to 3 p.m. Tuesdays, 
Wednesdays and Thursdays. This is for Storey County residents only, payment will be by 
credit card only, can only do simple title and registration transactions. Commissioner 
Gilman said he often gets title/registration documents mailed to his Storey County 
address, but they show Washoe County as his residence – can he change that at the 
Clerk’s window? Mr. Hindle said he will check on that and follow up. (Yes, the Clerk’s 
window can make the change in county designation.) 

• Property taxes were due yesterday (3/3/2025) and are coming in as expected. The Office 
will work with property owners who are delinquent. Mr. Hindle added that the U.S. 
Postal Service has not been performing well, so, if possible, please bring property tax 
payments to the Clerk’s Office, or pay online, though this will incur a processing fee. 

 
9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment): 

Commissioner Carmona noted the passing of Virginia City Highlands resident Allen Valiquet, 
a long-time county resident. 

 
10. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD  
 
11. 10:30 A.M. PUBLIC HEARING: Public Hearing on proposed Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 

25-759, 25-760, 25-761 and 25-762 as described: RESOLUTION 25-757 A RESOLUTION 
ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY 
ROAD NUMBER 910100, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county 
road. RESOLUTION 25-758 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910320, CEMETERY RD, 
PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is proposed that 



the road be identified as a minor county road. RESOLUTION 25-759 A RESOLUTION 
ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY 
ROAD NUMBER 910325, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county 
road. RESOLUTION 25-760 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910470, UNNAMED RD, 
PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is proposed that 
the road be identified as a minor county road. RESOLUTION 25-761 A RESOLUTION 
ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY 
ROAD NUMBER 911345, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county 
road. RESOLUTION 25-762 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 920020, HILLSIDE RD, 
PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is proposed that 
the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road as a minor 
county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by 
Storey County. It must be used by the public at its own risk. Please go to the Storey County 
website to view the packet. Storeycounty.org/Planning/Planning Updates then Scroll down to 
RS2477 packet information for this item.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to close the public hearing on the proposed 
Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 25-759, 25-760, 25-761 and 25-762. Seconded by: Donald 
Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution 25-757 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910100,
commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’
(0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet. It is proposed
that the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road as a
minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

Planning Manager Kathy Canfield said this is one of the RS2477 roads in the program. They
are all located south of the Highlands and north of Virginia City and Six Mile Canyon. It
does show that it goes onto some private property, but the resolution only applies to public
property. This can prevent the Bureau of Land Management from blocking the roads. Ms.
Canfield said they will work with private property owners individually.

Public Comment: None



Motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move 
to adopt Resolution 25-757, identifying Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly 
known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as a minor county 
road. The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public 
road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by 
motorists at their own risk. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution 25-758 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910320,
commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’
(0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet. It is proposed
that the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road as a
minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

Ms. Canfield said this road is just below Geiger Grade.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to adopt Resolution 25-758, identifying Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly
known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles)
Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as a minor county road.
The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road,
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at
their own risk. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution 25-759 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910325,
commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):
3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet. It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road
as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

Ms. Canfield said this road is north of the cemetery, south of the Highlands and close to
Seven Mile Canyon.

Public Comment: None



Motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move 
to adopt Resolution 25-759, identifying Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly 
known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as a minor 
county road. The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a 
public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by 
motorists at their own risk. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution 25-760 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910470,
commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):
4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, it is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road
as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

Ms. Canfield said this segment is located further down Six Mile Canon and the Highlands,
but close to the Mark Twain Estates.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to adopt Resolution 25-760, identifying Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly
known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet as a minor county
road. The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public
road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by
motorists at their own risk. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution 25-761 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 911345,
commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):
1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet. It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road
as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

Ms. Canfield said this road was close to Geiger Grade.

Public Comment: None



Motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I (commissioner) move to adopt 
Resolution 25-761, identifying Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as 
Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) 
Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as a minor county road. 
The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at 
their own risk. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution 25-762 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 920020,
commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):
3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet. It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. The effect of identifying the road
as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County. It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

Ms. Canfield said this road is named and the segment studies include private and public land,
but we are only recognizing portion on public land. The purpose is once we get onto private
land, not everyone is excited to see they have a public road on their land. This road has had
previous litigation.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to adopt Resolution 25-762, identifying Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly
known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet as a minor county
road. The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public
road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by
motorists at their own risk. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

Ms. Canfield added that there is a map available to exhibit the actions taken on these roads.

18. DISCUSSION ONLY: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways
throughout Storey County.

Mike Northan said the 2025 Road Rehab projects will go to bid on March 11, and that
shoulder improvement and pothole filling was ongoing.

Public Comment: None



19. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Special
Use Permit 2025-014. The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate an outdoor
establishment. The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will include a
variety of scheduled uses and special events. The property is located at 100 N. E Street,
Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001- 154-03 and 001-
151-02.

Ms. Canfield said this is a request for a Special Use Permit, which is necessary because of 
the outdoor aspect. Details are in the findings, along with an exhibit that lists potential 
events, though not all of them will occur. This was approved by the Planning Commission. 

Ms. Canfield read the findings. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 
3.A of this report and as read into the record by county staff and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions
of approval, I (commissioner), recommend the approval of Special Use Permit 2025-014 to
operate an outdoor establishment. The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn
and will include a variety of scheduled uses and special events. The property is located at 100
N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001-154-
03 and 001-151-02. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

21. DISCUSSION ONLY: Presentation and discussion featuring Storey County Public Relations
& Social Media Metrics Update (August 2024 – January 2025).

Julia Moreno-Fritz said over the past 6 months, public relations and social media efforts have
had a major impact. She had a comprehensive media list.

• Press releases and print media: In 2024, she issued five press releases, and received lots
of coverage for all, especially on the Davis Creek Fire. She has also produced articles for
the Comstock Chronicle.

• Social Media Stats: Ms. Moreno-Fritz said she has developed a social media tracking
system, recording likes, shares, comments, sentiment score and top active times.

• Audience Demographics: This is for tailoring the messaging and outreach. Most
followers are in Reno, followed by Sparks and Carson City, but also Dayton, Virginia
City and Silver City. Ages 35-44 are 27 percent; 45-54 are 23 percent, 18-24 are 4 percent
while over 55 is 28 percent. Women are at 54 percent and men are at 43 percent.



• Platforms: 55 percent of followers are from Facebook, 25 percent from X and 15 percent
from Instagram.

• Overall Growth: In just five months, Ms. Moreno-Fritz said impact has grown by more
than 700 followers, bringing the total to 8,500, up from 7,700.

• New Platforms & Expansion: LinkedIn and Threads have been included.
• Billboards: There is one in Carson City at the corner of Carson Street and College

Parkway. In Reno, it is in South Reno near the Damonte Ranch exit on 395. This is
designed for targeting legislators traveling from Reno to Carson City. Expected
impressions are 150,000 weekly, or 15 percent of the local population.

• Nevada Newsmakers: the ads show good visibility.
• Google, FB & IG Ads; Video ads have run across Google, Facebook and Instagram as

part of the legislative strategy. Google ads are reaching a large audience, with 59 percent
being women and 41 percent men. Facebook and Instagram ads are mostly male. On
Facebook and Instagram, the audience is primarily male at 73%, with women making up
25%. Interestingly, while the nonpaid content tends to attract more women, our paid ads
are generating significantly more engagement from men. The video plays on Facebook
and Instagram show strong engagement, with 5,200 plays. · I will continue to experiment
more with all our ads over the next few months to see what works.

• Website: Ms. Julia Moreno-Fritz has updated the County’s Website, working with
departments to enhance their pages.

Commissioners praised her efforts. 

Public Comment: None 

22. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval directing
the Comptroller to notify the Nevada Department of Taxation of the property tax rate the
Storey County Board of Commissioners propose to levy for fiscal year 2025-2026.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said this is a housekeeping issue, done every year. We need to
inform NVTax of the property tax rate the County sets.

Commissioner Mitchell supported keeping the tax rate as it is and at the level set for previous
years.

Clerk & Treasurer Jim Hindle said his office receives a lot of calls inquiring about tax
increases, but our response is that the tax rate hasn’t changed for many years. The
assessments have gone up, not the tax rate. The County can be proud of this fact.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Comptroller to inform Nevada
Department of Taxation that the Storey County Board of Commissioners propose to levy a



property tax rate of 3.4607 percent in fiscal year 2025-2026. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Storey
County's Plan of Corrective Action in response to the Department of Taxation’s review of
Fiscal Year 2024 annual audit report and identified violations pursuant to NRS 354.6245.

Ms. McCain said this is a housekeeping issue. Our audit is a very big document, when our
auditor Joe Costanza, indicated these things. Taxation has to find problems themselves. This
is a formal way to let NVTax know what is being done to make sure these things don’t
happen again.

Ms. McCain said some special funds, such as drug court equipment and and federal and grant
funds backdated expenses, the county had already gone through those processes. Being out of
budget does not mean it affected the bottom line. All budgets have ample fund balances.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, approve Storey County's Plan of Corrective Action in
response to the Nevada Department of Taxation’s review of the Fiscal Year 2024 annual audit
report and identified violations pursuant to NRS 354.6245. Seconded by: Donald Gilman.
Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

24. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

25. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to
increase previously approved funding from the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a
tractor and trailer that were outlined in the district CIP, to an estimated amount of $340,000,
an increase of $40,000.

Assistant Chief Jim Morgan said they sought a used vehicle, but found that a new vehicle and
trailer that will meet our needs significantly better than buying used.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve an increase in available funds from
the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer at the estimated amount of
$340,000, an increase of $40,000. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

27. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS



 
28. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 

Resolution No. 25-765 of the Board of Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada, 
reaffirming the board’s request to the Nevada Delegation to advance federal public lands 
legislation commonly referred to as the Truckee Meadows Public Lands Management Act to 
support conservation, recreation, and economic development in Washoe County.  

 
County Manager Austin Osborne said Carson City created a resolution supporting this lands 
bill. This board agreed to it. It was later re-affirmed. The proposed action is to let 
representatives know that equally support the bill and that support is regional. He wanted the 
board to adopt the resolution. 

 
County Manager Osborne read the title of the resolution. 

 
Public Comment: None 

 
Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Resolution No. 25- 765 of the Board of 
Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada, reaffirming this board’s request to the Nevada 
Delegation to advance federal public lands legislation commonly referred to as the Truckee 
Meadows Public Lands Management Act to support conservation, recreation, and economic 
development in Washoe County. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Update, discussion, and provide direction to 

county staff and lobbyists regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County 
including, but not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement 
programming, Senate bill(s) regarding regional planning Storey, Washoe, Lyon, Carson, 
Douglas, and cities, Daly; SB78 as potentially related to the Comstock Historic District 
Commission; AB77 tax abatement; AB32 V&T Railway, AB128 public records request 
ombudsman including open cases; AB242 sagebrush ecosystem and fire fuels reduction; 
SB232 Veterans Storey County; SB247 rail transit; AB247 real-time sign language 
translation and disabilities; AB61 Washoe County toll roads; all bills supported by the 
Nevada Association of Counties (NACO) unless otherwise directed by the board, and 
AGA2240 Daylight Savings Time.  

 
County Manager Austin Osborne said Will Adler and Alex Tanchek of Silver State 
Government Relations are expected shortly. Mr. Osborne suggested that, except for specific 
Storey County bills, all other bills are monitored by NACO.  Some counties are asking 
commissioners to support any bill supported by NACO; however, one affects Storey County 
adversely, so Mr. Osborn recommended refraining from blanket support. The Commissioners 
agreed, and Commissioner Mitchell expressed he wanted to take a similar approach to other 
counties’ bills: refrain from blanket support unless they asked us to take a specific position.  
 



Mr. Osborne said: 
• AB242 regards sagebrush ecosystems that the Fire Chief may speak to, in that the bill

may prevent fire fuel reduction.
• SB69 has ongoing discussions, and data centers may be removed from the bill. Some

counties have other issues with these companies such as different rules for Special Use
Permits. The hottest issue on the bill is having a County representative as a member on
the GOED board.

Mr. Adler said overall, the governor’s budget is the top issue at the Legislature. There will be 
a restructuring of Medicaid. He said Storey County should try to be the rural voice. On SB69, 
we had a lot of engagement and are still reaching out to businesses and chambers of 
commerce. We have not seen language on the Governor’s BDR. Commissioner Mitchell said 
the Governor’s bill does not eliminate the need for SB69. Mr. Adler agreed we should still 
address what we can with this bill. They had a meeting on the language of the bill with 
representatives of the Department of Taxation. They have reached out directly to numerous 
legislators.  

Commissioner Mitchell wanted to go over SB69 again due to tax language. Mr. Osborne said 
GOED would like to see taxes listed when received. Mr. Adler said it was impacted by the 
Legislative Counsel Bureau drafting and anticipates they will change the language. 

Other bills Mr. Adler is watching include: 
• AB256 is the light rail issue and could involve I80 and service to TRIC.
• SB232 allocating funds for veterans in Virginia City. AB300 has similar language. We

will try to blend those together in one bill to advance support and passage
• SB78, on consolidation of various boards to reduce bureaucracy burden on counties.
• AB32, the V&T Railway Commission bill which the county is supporting
• AB128, a bill creating the office of the Public Records Ombudsman.
• AB81, a bill that would effectively keep NV on Daylight Savings Time year-round.
• SB247, a bill dealing with accommodating people with hearing impairments at public

meetings.

Commissioner Mitchell wanted to monitor AB33, which is the State Comptroller’s bill to 
create an office of the Inspector General to promote fiscal responsibility. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to direct county staff and lobbyists to represent 
Storey County on known BDRs, bills, and other potential legislation affecting Storey County 
as follows: as discussed on the record in our meeting today. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 



30. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
business license second readings:
A. American Document Destruction – Out of County / 480 Coney Island Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
B. Amfabsteel Inc. – Contractor / 100 Calle Industrial ~ Bernalillo, NM
C. Baobab Press – Home Based / 96 A St. ~ Virginia City, NV
D. Beyond Estate Sales LLC – Out of County / 1965 Woodhaven Ln ~ Sparks, NV
E. California Erectors Inc. – Contractor / 4500 California Ct. ~ Benecia, CA
F. Comstock Construction Services Inc. – Out of County / 115 Territory Rd. ~ Dayton, NV
G. Danny Couste Construction LLC – Contractor / 94 Paul Way ~ Carson City, NV
H. Fire Suppression Technology’s Inc. – Contractor / 216 F St. ~ Waterford, CA
I. KD Electric – Contractor / 681 Watson Way ~ Sparks, NV
J. MJB Construction Co. – Contractor / 5795 Tappan Dr. ~ Reno, NV
K. Reid Services LLC – Out of County / 425 College St. ~ Rockmart, GA
L. Schindler Elevator Corporation – Contractor / 20 Whippany Rd. ~ Morristown, NJ
M. Schumway’s Mobile Home Setters – Out of County / 5309 Torobie Cir. ~ Sun Valley, NV
N. XP Electric LLC – Contractor / 2266 Hayfield Ln. ~ Fernley, NV

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve second readings of business licenses 
listed under Item #30 as A-N. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

31. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Clerk-Treasurer Jim Hindle emphasized the times and
dates for DMV service, for Storey County residents only and only with credit card payments.

32. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
Commissioner Carmona adjourned the meeting at 12:21 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________ 
Jim Hindle 
Clerk & Treasurer 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A. Brite Glass Inc. – Contractor  / 100 Gentry Way # C7 ~ Reno, NV
• B. Build Group, Inc. – Contractor / 2121 N California Blvd Ste. 301 ~Walnut Creek, Ca
• C. Crown Lift Trucks – Out of County / 44 S. Washington St. ~ New Bremen, OH
• D. Diversified Fall Protection – Contractor / 24400 Sperry Dr. ~ Westlake, OH
• E. GE Excavating – Contractor / 1123 Jo Lane ~ Gardnerville, NV
• F. HGI, Inc. – Professional / 503 Westlake Ave. N Ste 400 ~ Seattle, WA
• G. Hi Tech Commercial Service – Contractor / 1840 Stella Lake St. ~ Las Vegas, NV
• H. Horizon Equipment Repair – Out of County / 1606 Donna Way ~ Fernley, NV
• I. JP Fence LLC – Contractor / 16 Jones Rd. Ste. E ~ Mound House, NV
• J. Novo Logistics – General / 700 Milan ~ McCarran, NV
• K. Oxford Global Resources LLC – Out of County / 900 Cummings Center Ste. 326T ~

Beverly, MA
• L. Premier Drywall LLC – Contractor / 391 Smithridge Park ~ Reno, NV
• M. Prime Field Service Corp – Out of County / 575 W. 800 S. ~ Salt Lake City, UT
• N. Silver State Insulation LLC – Contractor / 105 Hercules Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
• O. TriiiForce LLC – Contractor / 1102 Reed Cir. ~ Fernley, NV
• P. United Fire Systems & Security LLC – Contractor / 2055 Helm Dr. ~ Las Vegas, NV
• Q. Universal Solar Direct – Contractor / 6555 S. Valley View Blvd. Unit 524 ~ Las

Vegas, NV
• R. Voda Cleaning & Restoration of Reno & Carson City – Out of County / 5655 Riggins

Ct. Ste. 13 ~ Reno, NV

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

       7  I



• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office March 24, 2025 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the April 01, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. Brite Glass Inc. – Contractor  / 100 Gentry Way # C7 ~ Reno, NV

B. Build Group, Inc. – Contractor / 2121 N California Blvd Ste. 301 ~Walnut Creek, Ca

C. Crown Lift Trucks – Out of County / 44 S. Washington St. ~ New Bremen, OH

D. Diversified Fall Protection – Contractor / 24400 Sperry Dr. ~ Westlake, OH

E. GE Excavating – Contractor / 1123 Jo Lane ~ Gardnerville, NV

F. HGI, Inc. – Professional / 503 Westlake Ave. N Ste 400 ~ Seattle, WA

G. Hi Tech Commercial Service – Contractor / 1840 Stella Lake St. ~ Las Vegas, NV

H. Horizon Equipment Repair – Out of County / 1606 Donna Way ~ Fernley, NV

I. JP Fence LLC – Contractor / 16 Jones Rd. Ste. E ~ Mound House, NV

J. Novo Logistics – General / 700 Milan ~ McCarran, NV

K. Oxford Global Resources LLC – Out of County / 900 Cummings Center Ste. 326T ~ Beverly, MA

L. Premier Drywall LLC – Contractor / 391 Smithridge Park ~ Reno, NV

M. Prime Field Service Corp – Out of County / 575 W. 800 S. ~ Salt Lake City, UT

N. Silver State Insulation LLC – Contractor / 105 Hercules Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

O. TriiiForce LLC – Contractor / 1102 Reed Cir. ~ Fernley, NV

P. United Fire Systems & Security LLC – Contractor / 2055 Helm Dr. ~ Las Vegas, NV

Q. Universal Solar Direct – Contractor / 6555 S. Valley View Blvd. Unit 524 ~ Las Vegas, NV

R. Voda Cleaning & Restoration of Reno & Carson City – Out of County / 5655 Riggins Ct. Ste. 13 ~

Reno, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel policies 301
Personnel Office Role in the Hiring Process; 302 Source of Candidates; Open
Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible List to Vacant Positions; 303 Job
Announcements; 304 Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants; 305
Examination Process and Interviewing Applicants; and 306 Applicant/Employee
Reference Checks.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with staff recommendation, I (commissioner)
move to approve revisions to Personnel policies 301 Personnel Office Role in the Hiring
Process; 302 Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible
List to Vacant Positions; 303 Job Announcements; 304 Applications, Eligibility or
Reduction of Applicants; 305 Examination Process and Interviewing Applicants; and 306
Applicant/Employee Reference Checks.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: We are requesting the approval of the following personnel policies as
part of our five-year policy review process:

•
• • Policy 301: Personnel Office Role in the Hiring Process
• • Policy 302: Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and

Eligible List to Vacant Positions
• • Policy 303: Job Announcements
• • Policy 304: Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants
• • Policy 305: Examination Process and Interviewing Applicants
• • Policy 306: Applicant/Employee Reference Checks
•
• These policies have been reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure alignment with 

current regulations and best practices. The revisions are intended to strengthen our 
organizational framework and provide clear guidelines for personnel management 
moving forward.

• Approval of these policies will ensure that our personnel guidelines are up to date and in
compliance with applicable laws and industry standards.

       7  II



• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER      301 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FFECTIVE DATE:        8-19-08    

REVISED:  12-15-16 / 10-17-17 / 
04/01/2025

AUTHORITY:                   BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER     ___PAW 

AO

SUBJECT:  Personnel Office/Administrative Officer role in the Hiring Process

POLICY:  

It is recognized that the role of the Personnel Office/Administrative Officer is critical in the 

hiring process and that utilizing the subject matter expertise of those in the department will 

help ensure the selection of the most appropriately qualified candidate for each position.  

Therefore, Storey County will involve department management in the recruitment, 

examination, and selection process.  

1. Correction of Administrative Errors

If Storey County should discover any administrative error regarding the process of

filling a vacancy, it will correct the error at any time during the duration of the eligible

list.  No such correction shall affect an appointment.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel HR Director and/or Administrative 
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Page 1 of 2

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE            NUMBER               303           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:         8-19-08  

REVISED:  1-20-09/08-04-15/12-04-18
04/01/2025 AUTHORITY:
BOC COUNTY MANAGER:             
PAW AO
SUBJECT:  Job Announcements

1. PURPOSE
Prior to initiating recruitment, the employer should verify the essential job functions; identify 
knowledge, skills, and abilities needed, and determine what education, experience, and 
credentials will provide the desired knowledge, skills, and abilities.
2. POLICY
2.1 Announcement

a. The employer will announce internally or externally all vacant employment positions. An
announcement may be for the purpose of filling a single vacancy or to establish an
eligible applicant pool (see Policy 302) for one or more vacancies in the same job class.
Position vacancies will be publicized to allow potentially qualified and interested
individuals to learn of employment opportunities and to encourage applicants from
diverse backgrounds to apply.
The employer may request an external posting for which any person within and outside
the organization may apply, or an internal posting for which only existing regular full-
time, part-time, and casual county employees may apply. Preference may be given to
post-probationary employees with 12 or more months of service to the employer.
Recruitment announcements will always be posted on bulletin boards within each
occupied county office building for a period of no less than 15 calendar days prior to the
last date for application or the date scheduled for testing, whichever is earlier and in such
other places as the employer feels appropriate.
The announcement will normally include the following:

i. Title, pay range, grade, and FLSA exempt or non-exempt status of the vacant
position.

ii. Nature of the work to be performed, including the essential job functions.
iii. Minimum and/or eligibility requirements as well as any preferred qualifications,

including education, license or certifications, employment, training, experience
criteria, knowledge, skills, abilities and whether equivalent factors will be
recognized.

iv. Whether the advertisement is an internal organization-wide only posting,
department only posting (and what department), or external posting;

v. Whether county or other seniority or length of service will be considered a
factor, and if so, what weight will be given to such consideration in measuring or
rating applicants.

vi. Manner of applying (where, how and deadlines).



Page 2 of 2

vii. Whether there will be competitive testing, and if so, the date, time and place of
the test; the nature and scope of the test subject matter; and any reference
material or sources upon which the test is based.

viii. Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and or physical demonstration
components or other appropriate screening mechanisms.

ix. A declaration that the employer is an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)
employer, and Americans with Disabilities (ADA) accommodations are
available.

x. The dates of the posting.
b. Regular employees will be released from work, on paid status, to take an examination and

participate in an interview for Storey County positions held during their scheduled work
time.  Casual employees will not be paid for time taken to participate in an examination
or interview.

2.2 Application Forms and Files 
Applications for employment must be made in writing on prescribed forms (reference: Employer 
Employment Application).  All employment applications must be submitted online through the 
Storey County Government Jobs account 
(https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/storeycounty). Applicants must complete a separate 
application form for each vacancy unless the job announcement indicates otherwise. The 
employer may also require resumes, completed supplemental questionnaires, and other evidence 
of education, training, experience, or other lawful requirements. Applications and other materials 
submitted become part of the application file and the property of the employer.
2.3 Signatures
Applications must be signed by the applicant. Only original completed applications with the 
applicant’s signature will be accepted. Faxed and email copies of the application form will not be 
accepted. 
2.4 Application Filing Periods

a. Recruitment announcements will specify the application filing period. Applications must
be received or postmarked by the date specified. The filing period may end on a specific
date and/or may allow acceptance of applications until a sufficient number of
appropriately qualified candidates have applied. The Administrative Officer and/or
Personnel HR Director, consulting with department management, will determine when
sufficient applications have been received.

b. Application periods will end at the close of the business day or at the specific time stated
on the recruitment announcement. A job announcement may be closed at any time and
for any reason as determined by the employer.

c. An application period may be ended when no job openings are anticipated or for other
reasons as determined by the employer.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel  HR Director and/or 
Administrative Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Page 1 of 3

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE             NUMBER      302
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:         08-19/08

REVISED:         01-20-09/ 08-04-15
12-04-18/ 08-04-20
05-17-22 /10-04-22

/ 04/01/2025
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:         AO

SUBJECT: Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible 
List to Vacant Positions

1. PURPOSE
It is recognized that the role of the department is critical in the hiring process and that utilizing the 
subject matter expertise of those in the hiring department will help ensure the selection of the most 
appropriately qualified candidate for each position. Therefore, the county will involve department 
management in the recruitment, examination, and selection process.  
2. POLICY
2.1 Filling Positions
Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from an existing eligible applicant pool. If
no eligible applicant pool has been established or the pool contains no qualified applicants, the
employer may initiate a recruitment (promotional from within or open to outside the organization)
to create or renew an eligible applicant pool. Applications from present employees may be
considered for open positions before non-employee applicants are considered. For open
recruitments, the position vacancy announcement will be posted internally and externally.
The general policy of the county is to fill vacant or new positions from within the organization 
when possible, depending upon qualifications and interest of existing regular full-time, part-time, 
and casual employees. Employees are encouraged to apply for any vacancy for which they may 
qualify. 
Promotional recruitments limit consideration of applicants to qualified employees currently 
working within a single department of the employer (departmental/promotions) or to qualified 
employees currently working within the employer (employer-wide/promotional). These internal 
recruitments are limited to employees in regular part-time and regular full-time status. Preference 
may be given to post-probationary employees with 12 or more months of service to the employer.
When deciding what type of recruitment to initiate, the employer will consider such factors as the 
impact of the decision on the employer’s efforts to have a workforce which is representative of:

a. The local population;
b. The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;
c. The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be

acquired on the job;
d. The qualifications of employees potentially available for placement on a promotional list;
e. The effects on retention of present employees; and
f. The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

After the employer has determined how it will announce the vacancy, it will develop a recruitment 
plan by determining the applicant pool it wishes to target and in what geographic region it will 



Page 2 of 3

advertise; determining what types of media (e.g., internet, newspapers, trade journals) will be used 
to advertise and ensuring outreach efforts reach diverse applicant groups.  

2.2 Eligible Applicant Pool
a. The employer may maintain eligible applicant pools consisting of the names of applicants

eligible for hire based on the recruitment process. While generally used to fill a single
position, eligible applicant pools may be used to fill additional positions which occur
within 6 months of the establishment of the pool. Eligible applicant pools for law
enforcement and fire protection positions may be maintained for up to 12 months when
published as such.

b. Any person on an appropriate reinstatement list shall be considered for employment in
accordance with the employer’s established layoff policy.

c. An applicant will be removed from the eligible applicant pool if the applicant submits a
written request to be removed, or if the applicant fails to respond within an allotted time
period to instructions regarding participation in an examination or selection interview. An
eligible applicant who refuses an offer of employment will be removed from the eligible
applicant pool unless the specific circumstances of the refusal warrant otherwise as
determined by the employer.

2.3 Transfers
a. An internal transfer is a lateral change of an employee from one position to another position

in the same class or to a different class in the same salary range.  A transfer may be made
without regard to the provisions of Storey County relative to job announcements, postings,
and appointment.  The employee must successfully pass any required testing that may be
required for the position if the employee did not previously hold the requested position.

b. Internal transfers and promotions do not change the employee’s date of hire. However, the
anniversary date for future performance evaluations and merit salary increase
considerations shall become the date of promotion.

2.4  Scope
It is recognized that the role of the department is critical in the hiring process and that utilizing the
subject matter expertise of those in the hiring department will help ensure the selection of the most
appropriately qualified candidate for each position. Therefore, the employer will involve
department management in the recruitment, examination, and selection process.  
2.5 Source of Applicant 
Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from existing eligible lists. If no eligible list 
exists, the employer may initiate a recruitment (open or promotional) to create an eligible list. 
Applications from present employees may be considered for open positions before non-employee 
applicants are considered. For open recruitments, the position vacancy announcement will be 
posted internally and externally.
Promotional recruitments limit consideration of applicants to qualified employees currently 
working within a single department of the employer (departmental/promotions) or to qualified 
employees currently working within the employer (employer-wide/promotional).
When deciding what type of recruitment to initiate, the employer will consider such factors as the 
impact of the decision on the employer’s efforts to have a workforce which is representative of:

a. The local population;
b. The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;



Page 3 of 3

c. The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be
acquired on the job;

d. The qualifications of employees potentially available for placement on a promotional list;
e. The effects on retention of present employees; and
f. The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

After the employer has determined how it will announce the vacancy, it will develop a recruitment 
plan by determining the applicant pool they wish to target and in what geographic region they will 
advertise; determining what types of media (e.g., internet, newspapers, trade journals) will be used 
to advertise and ensuring outreach efforts reach diverse applicant groups.  
2.6 Emergency Appointment
In case of an emergency, as approved by the HR Director, an appointment may be made without 
regard to the provisions of Storey County HR policies relative to job announcements, postings, 
and appointment. Emergency appointments shall not continue longer than one year.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County HR Director will review this policy every 5 
years or sooner as necessary.



Page 1 of 2

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE           NUMBER: 304
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:         08/19/08

REVISED:           1/20/09
10/17/17
12/04/18
05/17/22

04/01/2025
AUTHORITY: BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:  AO 

SUBJECT:  Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants

PURPOSE:   This policy is designed to establish guidelines for the district county in regard to 
applications received.

POLICY:   A.     General Requirements for Filing of Applications.

1. Application Forms. Applications for employment must be made in writing
and submitted online through the county’s online application portal.
(https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/storeycounty). to the Human
Resources office on a prescribed application form.

2. Multiple Vacancies. Applicants must complete a separate application form for
each vacancy unless the job announcement indicates otherwise.

3. Required Submittals. The employer may also require résumés, completed
supplemental questionnaires, and other evidence of education, training,
experience, or other lawful requirements, including licenses and certifications.

4. Signatures. Applications must be signed by the applicant. An electronic
signature is acceptable for applications submitted through the employer’s
online application portal., unless the employer does not maintain an online
application and portal.

5. Ownership. Applications and supplementary materials submitted become the
property of the employer.

B. Application Filing Period

Recruitment announcements will specify the application filing period. Applications must
be received or postmarked by the due date specified. Application periods will end at the 
close of the business day or at the specific time stated on the recruitment announcement. 
A job announcement may be cancelled at any time and for any reason as determined by 
the employer.

C. Eligibility of Applicants

An applicant may be disqualified from further participation in the recruitment process
and/or from placement on an eligible list by the employer for material reasons, including, 
but not limited to, those listed below:

1. The application does not indicate the candidate possesses the qualifications
required for the position.

2. The application is not fully, truthfully, legibly, and/or neatly completed.

3. The applicant for employment as a peace officer or a position which entails
physical access to computer and/or equipment used to access the Nevada
Criminal Justice Information System or the National Crime Information Center
may be disqualified for prior convictions that relate to the position for which s/he

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/storeycounty


Page 2 of 2

is being considered as provided for in NRS 245, NRS 268, or NRS 269 as 
applicable.

4. The applicant has been discharged from or resigned in lieu of dismissal from any
prior employment for any cause which would constitute a reason for dismissal
from employment with the employer.

5. The applicant does not appear at the time and place designated for an
examination or interview.

6. The applicant is a former employee of the employer who, absent a compelling
reason, quit without notice.

7. Applicant’s failure to possess a valid license, certificate, permit, etc. If a
prospective applicant for a position cannot obtain the required license,
certificate, permit, or occupational certification required for the job, s/he will not
be given any further employment consideration for the subject position.   Any
job offer, offer of promotion, or offer of transfer previously made will be
withdrawn.

8. The applicant is a former employee whose performance evaluations indicated
below acceptable performance and/or behavioral problems, such as
insubordination, dishonesty, leave abuse, or excessive tardiness.

D. Limitation of Application Pool to Most Qualified
The employer may determine at any point in the recruitment process that only those
applicants who are deemed most qualified for the vacancy being filled will continue to be
considered.

E. Preference for Military Veterans and Residents
In compliance with NRS 281.060(2) if the qualifications for applicants are equal, the
County will give preference first to honorably discharged military personnel who are
citizens of the State of Nevada, and second, to citizens of the State of Nevada.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County HR Director will review this policy every 5 years 
or sooner as necessary.



Page 1 of 2

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE            NUMBER               305           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:         8-19-08

 REVISED:               1-20-09/10-17-17
/ 04/01/2025 AUTHORITY:
BOC COUNTY MANAGER:
___PAW AO

SUBJECT:  Examination Process and Interviewing Applicants

PURPOSE: To establish policy regarding examinations and interviewing that will be used to 
evaluate   applicants’ qualifications and suitability for the position.

POLICY:  

A. Examination Process

All examinations for employment, whether formal or informal, are conducted 
under the direction of the employer.  Examinations shall be conducted when there 
is a need to establish an eligible list or in any circumstances the employer deems 
appropriate.

Examinations will be used to evaluate applicants’ qualifications and suitability for 
the position.  Factors evaluated through the examination process may include, but 
are not limited to, the knowledge, ability, skill, achievement, physical and mental 
fitness, and job-related personal characteristics such as customer service skills.

1. Types of Examinations
The techniques used in the examination process shall be consistent, 
impartial and practical, and shall relate to the qualifications and suitability 
of applicants to perform the job duties and responsibilities of the position.  
Examinations may include any or a combination of the following selection 
techniques:

 Evaluation of employment applications;

 Assessment of experience, training, and/or education;

 Written tests;

 Personal and group interviews;

 Performance tests;

 Physical ability tests;

 Evaluation of work performance and work samples; and

 Other assessment methods as deemed appropriate for the
class/position..

2. Minimum Standards



Page 2 of 2

In any examination, the employer may include qualifying and/or 
competitive components and may establish minimum standards or scores 
for each component and/or the examination as a whole.

B. Interviewing Applicants
Selecting the most appropriately qualified candidate for the position will reduce 
turnover, reduce the costs associated with training, and improve the effectiveness 
of the organization. The interviewing portion of the selection process is critical 
for determining which applicants are best qualified to do the job.
Once applications have been evaluated and a determination has been made 
regarding which applicants are selected for an interview vs. those who will not be 
interviewed, all applicants should be notified as to their status. The interviewing 
portion of the selection process is critical for determining which applicants are 
best qualified to do the job. 
Prior to conducting an employment interview, the department head should: 

1. Review the job descriptions.
2. Create job-related questions with the Human Resources office to

ask each candidate to help ensure consistency. Questions should be
open-ended, job-related and about past work experiences to
identify skills and strengths. Have candidates describe an actual
situation or instance that allows him/her to demonstrate how s/he
really responded to that situation, rather than what s/he thinks you
want to hear.

3. Prepare a Candidate Interview Evaluation Form (reference:
Candidate Interview Evaluation Form 305 F2) to measure strengths
and weaknesses.

4. Convene a reasonably diverse team as appropriate.
5. Conduct the job interview with a representative of the Human

Resources office.
Each candidate applying for the same position should be asked the same job-
related questions on the question guide and rated using the same evaluation form. 
The evaluation form will help the evaluator measure the extent to which each 
candidate possesses the necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities required for the 
position. Whenever necessary, ask follow-up questions to clarify the response of 
the candidate.  Avoid asking questions which are unlawful or on inappropriate 
subjects. Refer all panelists to the reference guides Prohibited Topics: “Questions 
Which Cannot Be Asked” (reference :Form 305_ F) and  “Potential Rating Errors 
and Problems” (reference: Potential Form 305 F1) for review prior to the actual 
interview. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel HR Director and/or 
Administrative Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Policy 306

Page 1 of 3

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE            NUMBER 306
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:         8-19-08

REVISED:      11-8-10 / 10/17/17 /
04/01/2025 AUTHORITY:
BOC COUNTY MANAGER:   
___PAW AO

SUBJECT:  Applicant/Employee Reference Checks

PURPOSE:  To establish policy regarding Applicant and Employee Reference Checks

POLICY: Reference Checks:  Acquiring and providing accurate employment references is 
an important component of acquiring, retaining, and providing relevant 
information concerning employees. Therefore, the employer is committed to 
adhering to the following procedure whenever conducting a reference check for 
an applicant for employment or when responding to inquiries from others for 
information regarding a current or former employee.
A. Acquiring References
Reference checks are conducted to assist the employer in assessing an applicant’s 
fitness for employment with the employer. Only those employees designated by 
the Personnel  HR Director and/or Administrative Officer may acquire 
employment references. Any authorized employee of the employer who attempts 
to acquire reference information on an applicant must comply with the following:
1. Obtain an employer employment application that is signed and dated by the

applicant (reference:  Employer Employment Application).  The applicant
must have completed all relevant sections of the application.

2. Obtain authorization from the applicant by means of his/her electronic
signature directly on the application and/or separate release form (reference:
Authorization to Conduct Employment Investigations) for the release of
information from former employers, military, educational institutions, other
institutions, personal references, and other individuals listed on the
application.  Authorization for release of such information by the applicant
shall include a release from liability of any company, institution, or individual
providing such information. If an applicant refuses to sign such a release, s/he
will be eliminated from further consideration for employment with the
employer.

3. Inform the applicant that the employer will conduct a reference check and that
evaluating the applicant’s suitability for employment includes contacting
employment and other references, educational institutions, and personal and
professional associates to verify information provided.

4. Develop questions that are related to the essential functions of the position and
are non-discriminatory. Questions related to an applicant’s training,
knowledge, skills, production, timeliness, quality of work, and ability to work
with others are examples of appropriate inquiries. Discriminatory or non-work
related questions such as family or marital status, disabilities, age, and related
areas are not appropriate.

http://www.poolpact.com/documents/77/Public%20Sector%20Employer%20Employment%20Application.doc
http://www.poolpact.com/documents/77/Authorization%20to%20Conduct%20Employment%20Investigation.doc


Policy 306

Page 2 of 3

5. Identify the appropriate individual(s) to question regarding the applicant’s
work performance, knowledge, skills, and abilities related to the essential
functions of the position.

6. Adequately document the conversation and record refusals to provide
information (reference: Reference Check Data Collection Form; Reference
Check Data Collection Form for Public Safety Agencies).

7. Maintain strict confidentiality of all background/reference information.  Only
employees, supervisors, or management officials of the employer who have a
demonstrable work-related need-to-know should be accorded access to such
information.
Note:  For safety-sensitive positions as defined by 49 CFR Part 382 and U.S.
Department of Transportation regulations, the employer shall obtain,
pursuant to an applicant’s written consent, information on his/her alcohol
tests and/or verified positive controlled substance test results, and refusals to
be tested within the preceding two years from date of application which are
maintained by the previous employers.

B. Providing References
All requests for employment information may be referred to the Personnel
Office. Only those personnel designated by the Personnel  HR Director and/or
Administrative Officer are authorized to release employment information to
third parties.

The employer has a neutral reference policy as well as a confidential information policy.  
Only the following personnel information and employment records that the employer 
maintains concerning current and former employees shall be provided upon request:

1. Name
2. Class/Job Title
3. Dates of Employment
4. Salary or Wages
5. Information regarding an employee terminated for violent actions in the

workplace or who may have demonstrated dangerous behavior in the
workplace will be provided only after consultation with employer’s legal
counsel.

6. Employment information and opinions regarding the character, honesty, and
potential for violence of the employer’s employees may be provided to
governmental employers, including, but not limited to, any federal, state,
county, municipality or city employers, or any other private (non-
governmental) employer where the employee’s character, honesty, sexual
misconduct, and potential for violence are relevant issues.  Examples include,
but are not limited to, jobs which involve public safety, entrustment for the
care or safety of children, the elderly or health care patients, or positions
having access to money and/or valuables. The employer must provide
information requested by law enforcement agencies in accordance with NRS
239B.

http://www.poolpact.com/documents/77/Reference%20Check%20Data%20Collection%20Form.doc


Policy 306

Page 3 of 3

7. Records which are required for employees in safety-sensitive positions, as
defined in 42 CFR Part 382 and U.S. Department of Transportation
regulations, shall be made available to subsequent employers upon receipt of
written request from the employee or former employee.

8. In accordance with NRS 239.012, a public officer or employee who acts in
good faith in disclosing or refusing to disclose information and his/her
employer are immune from liability for damages, either to the requester or to
the person whom the information concerns.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel  HR Director and/or 
Administrative Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1-2 hours

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Tentative Budgets.

• Recommended motion: Discussion ONLY.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: The Storey County 2025-2026 Tentative Budget is presented with the
department level budget submissions and the current tentative budget projections. In this
tentative budget the General Fund revenues are sufficient to cover the operational
expenses of the County. Key changes in the FY26 tentative budget include a potential
increase in health insurance of 10%, a PERS increase, an estimated 20% increase to
liability insurance, and additional funds added to the Ad Valorem apportionment.

• The tentative budget does not yet include any changes related to the AFSCME Union, as
negotiations are still ongoing. As presented, the tentative budget is projecting an ending
fund balance for the General Fund at approximately $15,600,000.

• Approval of the Storey County Tentative budget will be during the April 15, 2025,
meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

       10



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued































































































































































































































































































































































































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to proclaim April 13, 2025, through April 19,
2025, as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week.

• Recommended motion: I, (commissioner) move to proclaim April 13, 2025, through
April 19, 2025, as National Public Safety Telecommunications week in Storey County,
NV.

• Prepared by: Rachel Ferris

Department: Communications     Contact Number: 775-847-0930

• Staff Summary: Every year during the second week of April, the telecommunications
personnel in the public safety community are honored. This week-long event, initially set
up in 1981 by Patricia Anderson of Contra Costa County in California, is a time to
celebrate and thank those who dedicate their lives to serving the public. It is a week that
is set aside so everyone can be made aware of 911 dispatchers' hard work and dedication.
We thank the hard-working staff at the Storey County Communications Center for all the
sacrifices they make to create a better and safer world for the public. Their commitment
and professionalism is appreciated by Storey County, the public safety communications
community and the citizens they serve.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

        11



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



A PROCLAMATION DECLARING 
APRIL 13, 2025, THROUGH APRIL 19, 2025 

NATIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATORS WEEK IN 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

WHEREAS, behind every emergency response that takes place in Storey County there is a team 
of dedicated, professional Communications Specialist who are often the first and most vital link between 
our citizens and emergency services; and 

WHEREAS, Storey County Communications Specialists are the lifeblood of information for 
public safety personnel 24 hours a day, seven days a week, providing a critical safety service to the Storey 
County Sheriff's Office, Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Public Works; and 

WHEREAS, Storey County Communications Specialists can no longer be regarded as 
administrative or clerical professionals; the emergencies they handle in real time make them the "first" 
first responders, and 

WHEREAS, Storey County Communications Specialists are the single vital link for our police 
officers and firefighters, they are responsible for monitoring the first responders' activities and providing 
them with crucial information which ensures their safety, and 

WHEREAS, Storey County Communications Specialists who serve at the Storey County 
Communications Center have exhibited compassion, understanding and professionalism during the 
thousands of calls for services each year; and 

WHEREAS, Every Storey County Communications Specialist has contributed substantially to 
the apprehension of criminals, suppression of fires and treatment of medical patients throughout Storey 
county; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Storey County Board of Commissioners, do hereby 
proclaim the week of April 13 -19, 2025, to be observed, as 

"PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATIONS WEEK" 

In Storey County, Nevada 

Adopted this 1st day of April 2025. 

_______________________________ 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 Minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of an expenditure not to exceed $9,000 to the
Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable property situated
within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in Storey County for FY 2025-
2026 pursuant to NRS 534.040(2).

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to approve an expenditure not to exceed
$9,000 to the Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable
property situated within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in Storey County
for FY 2025-2026 pursuant to NRS 534.040(2).

• Prepared by: Lisa Maciel

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: (775) 847-0968

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to NRS 534.040.2, if the assessment is less than the cost of
collection, the County Commissioners may exempt the property owner from assessment
and appropriate money from the general fund of the county to pay the cost of assessment.
The State’s estimated assessment and other information is contained in the attached letter
dated March 7, 2025.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

       12



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued









Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business
Development to reallocate $1,500 of budgeted and available funds from the Professional
Services account to sponsor the Western Nevada Development District Summit to be held
in Virginia City, April 21 & 22, 2025.

• Recommended motion: I _(commissioner), move to approve the authorization for
Storey County Business Development to reallocate $1,500 of budgeted and available
funds from the Professional Services account to sponsor the Western Nevada
Development District Summit to be held in Virginia City, April 21 & 22, 2025.

• Prepared by: Lara Mather

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 7758470986

• Staff Summary: The Western Nevada Development District’s (WNDD) 2025 Summit,
titled Building A Stronger Nevada, will be held in Virginia City, April 21 & 22, 2025.
This sponsorship will help support the organization and includes two tickets to the
summit and dinner. Commissioner Mitchell and Sara Sturtz are on the WNDD board and
will be attending the event.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

       13



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES
Platinum $3,500 Gold $2,500 Copper $1,000

Silver $1,500

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: 
CHRIS BRANDON, 775.315.1046, CBRANDON@WNDD.ORG

• Opportunity to address reception dinner 
attendees with a 5-minute presentation. 
Additional opportunity for 5 minute 
presentation April 22.

• Stage/podium logo

• Recognition on WNDD social platforms, 
includes logo/link to sponsor’s website

• Recognition on event signage and printed 
materials

• Exhibit table at Summit events April 22

• 10 Tickets to Summit including dinner

• Placards on Summit event tables

• Company recognition on event monitors

• Listing in Summit program with contact 
information/logo

• Recognition on WNDD website

INCLUDES Signature Drink Sponsor 

• Signature drink developed and named 
after sponsor

• Signage in bar

• Opportunity to address reception dinner 
attendees with a 5-minute presentation

• Stage/podium logo

• Recognition on WNDD social platforms, 
includes logo/link to sponsor’s website

• Recognition on event signage and printed 
materials

• Exhibit table at Summit events April 22

• 4 Tickets to Summit including dinner

• Placards on Summit event tables

• Company recognition on event monitors

• Listing in Summit program with contact 
information/logo

• Recognition on WNDD website

• 2 Tickets to Summit including dinner

• Placards on Summit Event tables

• Company recognition on event monitors

• Listing in Summit program with contact 
information/logo

• Recognition on WNDD website

Quartz $500
• 1 Ticket to Summit including dinner

• Placards on Summit event tables

• Company recognition on event monitors

• Listing in Summit program with contact 
information/logo

• Recognition on WNDD website

• Exhibit table at Summit events April 22

• 2 Tickets to Summit including dinner

• Placards on Summit event tables

• Company recognition on event monitors

• Listing in Summit program with contact 
information/logo

• Recognition on WNDD website

WESTERN NEVADA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

2025 SUMMIT

NEVADANEVADA
STRONGERSTRONGER
BUILDING A

APRIL 21-22, 2025  •  VIRGINIA CITY, NV



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval authorizing Storey County staff to reallocate
$32,360.50 originally allocated to cover the costs of an elevator design at St. Mary’s Art
Center (SMAC) to instead be allocated to address the structural issues identified in the
north kitchen, moisture mitigation, replacement of radiator controls, and service of the
boiler system at SMAC.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to authorize Storey County staff to
reallocate $32,360.50 originally allocated to cover the costs of an elevator design at St.
Mary’s Art Center (SMAC) to instead be allocated to address the structural issues
identified in the north kitchen, moisture mitigation, replacement of radiator controls, and
service of the boiler system at SMAC.

• Prepared by: Sara Sturtz

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 775-350-9473

• Staff Summary: Consideration and possible approval authorizing Storey County staff to
reallocate $32,360.50 originally allocated to cover the costs of an elevator design at St.
Mary’s Art Center (SMAC) to instead be allocated to address the structural issues
identified in the north kitchen, moisture mitigation, replacement of radiator controls, and
service of the boiler system at SMAC. The County originally budgeted $29,000 this fiscal
year for SMAC to replace and repair the floors in the north and south kitchens and
$125,000 this fiscal year for SMAC to complete elevator design. However, due to delays
with elevator location approval and design, SMAC will not spend $125,000 for the
elevator design this fiscal year.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

       14



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Mt. Rose Heating & Air Conditioning Inc.

310 Sunshine Lane Reno, NV 89502 
Phone:  (775) 329-8384 

NV Lic. #32146 – CA Lic. #770238 – ID Lic. #RCE - 22367 

March 11, 2025 

St Mary’s Art Center 
334 S B Street 
Virginia city, NV 89440 
775-847-7774

Job:  Replace 3 Danfoss radiator thermostats and 15 Air bleeders 

We are pleased to offer the following proposal for your consideration. We will secure the power and steam on the boiler. 
Remove and replace 2 Danfoss radiator thermostats and 15 radiator air bleeders. Test for leaks on all installed parts. Turn 
the boiler and steam and test the operation. All labor, taxes, fees are included in this proposal.  

FOR THE TOTAL SUM OF: $2,838.00 

We Specifically Include: 
1. Items Listed Above

We specifically exclude: 
1. Cutting; Patching; Framing; Structural Engineering/Supports; Painting

2. Any Work Not Specified Above

By:______________________________________ 

Date:_____________________________________ 
.  

Pricing valid for 10 days then subject to equipment and material price increases. 

Respectfully, 

Scott A. Wagner 

Scott A. Wagner 
Service Manager 
Mt. Rose Heating and Air Conditioning 



Date 1/15/2025

Estimate # R240610

Lead Time: 1-2 Weeks

Attention: B. Day

Company: St. Mary's Art Center

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Thank you for your consideration, we look forward to receiving your response.
Terms:  Orders in excess of $25,000 will require payment of 25% Down, 50% upon Shipping and 25% on Completion.
If payment is made via credit card a 4.5% non-cash transaction fee will apply on all orders over $5,000.00.

Our price, including labor, materials, applicable taxes and freight.................

If this quotation meets with your approval please sign, date and indicate its purchase order number below and fax back to (775) 210-1757 
or email sales@sierraboiler.com

Quote Valid for 30 Days

Acceptance:  _________________________________ Date:  __________________

Purchase Order # _____________________________

Sierra Boiler Service, Inc, is pleased to offer, for your consideration the following:

Austin Schroeder

Cost
RE: ANNUAL MAINTENANCE ON BUDERUS BOILERS 

* Bring boilers offline for maintenance
* Open burner door by removing the two hexagon bolts on the sides
* Note the position of the flue gas baffle plates to
enable their correct re-installation later
* Remove the flue gas baffle plates from the flue gas
flues
* Clean the flue gas baffle plates with one of the two
cleaning brushes
* Clean the flue passages by turning the round
cleaning brush
* Clean the combustion chamber with a flat brush, remove the debris from the combustion chamber, the
flue passages, and the flue connection
* Install the flue baffle plates in their original position
* Check sealing rope on burner door. Replace damaged or hardened sealing rope
* Close burner door and tighten evenly

Notes: 
* Follow boiler maintenance from section 11.1 from the Buderus G215/7 service manual

3,300.00

Total $3,300.00

Sales Tax (7.6%) $0.00



License # 47504

Joe's Plumbing & Rooter Service
PO Box 20961
Carson City, NV. 89721
(775) 246-5634

Name / Address

St. Mary's Art Center
55  "R"  Street
Virginia City, NV.  89440

Estimate
Date Estimate #

3/13/2025 6391

Project

Description Qty Cost Total

Replace hot and cold water lines under North Kitchen floor. 2,897.652,200.00 2,897.652,200.00

Connect new pipe to old galvanized pipe in crawl space in center of
building.

Replace 2" ABS drain under North Kitchen floor.ALLWORKMUSTTAKEPLACEBEFOREFLOOR IS
0.00 0.00

INSTALLED

Total                                          $5,097.65

RESIDENTIAL RECOVERY FUND: In accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 624.400-624.550 and Nevada Administrative Code

(NAC) 624.730 to 624.770 inclusive, a homeower may file a claim with the Nevada State Contractors Board (NSCB) Residential Recovery Fund
for recovery of damages incurred by the failure of a residential contractor to perform Qualified Services adequately.   Qualified Services means any
constructi.on, remodeling, repair or improvement performed by a residential contractor on a single-family residence occupied by the owner of the
residence.

PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION:   Upon completion of the work described herein, I verify that I will provide payment in full to Joe's Plumbing &
Rooter Service, via cash, check or credit card.   If by credit card, I authorize Joe's Plumbing & Rooter Service to charge my credit card as provided
for payment of services.   This invoice is for the goods/services described above.   I certify that I am an authorized user of this credit card and/or
financial account, and that I will not dispute the payment with my credit card company and/or financial institution, so long as the transaction
corresponds to the terms indicated in this invoice.

WARRANTY: Joe's Plumbing & Rooter Service DOES NOT provide a warranty on Owner-provided parts and/or materials.  Joe's Plumbing &
Rooter Service DOES NOT provide a warranty on drain cleaning services.





Central Sierra Construction, Inc. 
General Building Contractor 

2551 Precision Dr., Ste. C, Minden, NV  89423 
775-267-2943 / 775-267-3642 Fax

NV lic#23444B 

Date:  March 14, 2025 

Proposal submitted to:  
Saint Mary’s Art Center 
Attn: Arika Perry 

Job Name: WEST ELEVATION FRENCH DRAIN 
Job Address: 55 North R Street, VIRGINIA CITY, NV  

We hereby propose to provide all labor and materials to install a 4” French drain system on each side of the main 
front porch entry. Includes excavation to daylight to a depth of approximately 24”- 30” below and gravel drain bed 
w/ filter fabric wrap. Bituminous roll-on waterproofing on stem wall while exposed.  All dirt spoils to be disposed of 
on-site.   

BID:  $14,350.00 

Exclusions: Any and all work not detailed above. Engineering. No off hour wages. No permits, drawings and 
fees.   

Payment to be made as follows: MONTHLY PROGRESS PAYMMENTS AS WORK IS 
COMPLETED 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard 
practices. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written 
orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements are contingent upon strikes, 
accidents or delays beyond our control. 

Authorized Signature William Park Date: 3-14-2025 

Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30  days. 

Acceptance of Proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You 

are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Date of Acceptance:  Signature 



Central Sierra Construction, Inc. 
General Building Contractor 

2551 Precision Dr., Ste. C, Minden, NV  89423 
775-267-2943 / 775-267-3642 Fax

NV lic#23444B 

Date:  March 14, 2025 

Proposal submitted to:  
Saint Mary’s Art Center 
Attn: Arika Perry 

Job Name: North Kitchen Floor Joist Repair 
Job Address: 55 North R Street, VIRGINIA CITY, NV  

We hereby propose to provide all labor and materials to repair a found condition at the North Kitchen. Essentially 
all the 3x10 wood floor joist are dry rotted where they meet the brick wall framing pockets. A repair was done at 
sometime in the past to stabilize in place this condition but repair is also failing due to direct wood contact to the 
earth in the crawl space. We will remove the rotted and failing wood, replace with new precast concrete piers, new 
4x6 girder and posts, tied into a new wood ledger at the brick wall. Rotten wood on end of floor joist will be removed 
and re-supported with new 2x8x7’ floor joist sistered to the existing floor joist and hung off the new 2x8 wall ledger.   

BID:  $5,625.00 
ADD for Vapor Barrier $300.00 Total= $5925.00 

Exclusions: Any and all work not detailed above. Engineering. No off hour wages. No permits, drawings and 
fees.   

Payment to be made as follows: MONTHLY PROGRESS PAYMMENTS AS WORK IS 
COMPLETED 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard 
practices. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written 
orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements are contingent upon strikes, 
accidents or delays beyond our control. 

Authorized Signature William Park Date: 3-10-2025 

Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30  days. 

Acceptance of Proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You 

are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Date of Acceptance:  Signature 



Central Sierra Construction, Inc. 
General Building Contractor 

2551 Precision Dr., Ste. C, Minden, NV  89423 
775-267-2943 / 775-267-3642 Fax

NV lic#23444B 

Date:  March 14, 2025 

Proposal submitted to:  
Saint Mary’s Art Center 
Attn: Arika Perry 

Job Name: South Kitchen Vapor Barrier  
Job Address: 55 North R Street, VIRGINIA CITY, NV  

We hereby propose to provide all labor and materials to install a 6 mil vapor barrier at crawl space at South kitchen 
prior to installing new wood flooring.   

BID:  $300.00 

Exclusions: Any and all work not detailed above. Engineering. No off hour wages. No permits, drawings and 
fees.   

Payment to be made as follows: MONTHLY PROGRESS PAYMMENTS AS WORK IS 
COMPLETED 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard 
practices. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written 
orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements are contingent upon strikes, 
accidents or delays beyond our control. 

Authorized Signature William Park Date: 3-14-2025 

Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30  days. 

Acceptance of Proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You 

are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Date of Acceptance:  Signature 



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 20

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Fire District Tentative
Budgets.

• Recommended motion: Discussion ONLY

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: The 2025-2026 Storey County Fire Protection District Tentative Budget
is presented with the department level budget submissions and the current tentative
budget projections.  In the presented tentative budget, the Fire District General Fund
revenues are sufficient to cover the operational expenses of the District. Key budget
changes from the FY25 budget include: additional positions, increased health insurance
costs, a PERS increase and higher equipment and auto maintenance expenses.

• Known outstanding items are potential liability insurance increase, final transfer amounts
to the Capital Fund and union negotiations regarding Cost-of-Living Allowance
adjustments.  The tentative budget projects an ending fund balance for the Fire District
General Fund at approximately $887,813. Approval of the tentative budget will be during
the April 15 meeting where we anticipate changes to the General Fund and Capital
Projects Fund ending balances.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       16



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Fl RE DISTRICT 

2025-2026 

PROPOSED 

TENTATIVE BUDGET 



























































































Storey County Water and Sewer Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Water and Sewer
Tentative Budgets.

• Recommended motion: Discussion ONLY

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: The 2025-2026 Storey County Water and Sewer Tentative Budgets are
presented with the department level budget submissions and the current tentative budget
projections. Although both funds are projected to end the year with positive fund
balances, their revenues are insufficient to fully cover the operational costs and the bond
payments. As a result, a transfer from the Infrastructure Fund is necessary to cover the
bond payments in both the Water and Sewer Funds.  The approval for the Tentative FY26
Budget will be during the April 15, 2025, Storey County Commission meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        18

































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of the second reading for On-Sale Liquor
License. Applicant is Jennifer Stoops, Maddy’s Place LLC, 55 North C Street, Virginia
City, NV.

• Recommended motion: I (insert name) motion to approve the First reading for On-Sale
Liquor License. Applicant is Jennifer Stoops, Maddy’s Place LLC, 55 North C Street,
Virginia City, NV.

• Prepared by: Erika Wall

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 775-847-0959

• Staff Summary: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Jennifer
Stoops, Maddy’s Place LLC, 55 North C Street, Virginia City, NV.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        20



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout
Storey County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion only.

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and highways throughout the county.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        22



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and  possible approval of the Storey County Safety Manual, Annex
B "Heat Illness Prevention Plan" as prepared by the Safety Committee.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to proceed with approval and adoption
of the Storey County Safety Manual, Annex B "Heat Illness Prevention Plan".

• Prepared by: Adam Wilson

Department: Emergency Management     Contact Number: 7756347443

• Staff Summary: In accordance with new NV OSHA regulations, this Heat Illness
Prevention Plan has been drafted as an annex and to be added to the BOCC approved
County Safety Manual. Review was conducted by the Safety Committee.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        24



1 

Storey County Safety 
Committee 

SAFETY MANUAL 

Adopted: 



2 

Contents 
Safety Program Policy Statement ........................................................................................................ 3 
1. Mission Statement......................................................................................................................... 4 
2. Safety Committee Structure ........................................................................................................ 4 
3. Meetings ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
4. Roles and Responsibilities ............................................................................................................ 4 
5. Safety Training ............................................................................................................................. 7 
6. Safety Rules and Discipline .......................................................................................................... 7 
7.      Identifying and Evaluating Workplace Risks ............................................................................ 8 
8.     Safety Communication .................................................................................................................. 8 
9.     Emergency Evacuation ................................................................................................................. 8 
10.   Accident Investigations ................................................................................................................. 9 

Appendix A: Forms…………………………………………………………………………………..10 

Appointment of Officers …………………………………………………………..………………...11 

Safety Inspection Checklist ……………………………………………….……..………………… 12 

Accident Investigation Form ………….…………………………………………..….…………….13 

Employee Unsafe/ Hazardous Conditions Report …………………………..……..….…………. 14 

New Employee Orientation Checklist …………………………………………...…...…………… 15 

Documented Verbal Warning ………………………………………………………..……………. 17 

Written Reprimand ……………………………………………………………………..…..……... 18 

Last Chance  Performance/ Behavior Agreement ……………...………………………….…..… 19 

Notice Of Injury Or Occupational Disease…………………………………………………………21 

Appendix B: Heat Illness Prevention Plan.....……………………………………………………...22 



3 

Safety Program Policy Statement 

To reduce incidents of on-the-job injuries, the 1993 legislature changed the law to require 
every employer doing business in the State of Nevada, to establish and carry out the 
requirements of a written safety program. Employers who do not establish and carry out 
the requirements of a written safety program will be cited by the Occupational Safety and 
Health Enforcement Section of the Division of Industrial Relations of the Nevada 
Department of Business and Industry.  

Storey County’s Board of County Commissioners has endorsed and mandated a 
committee that includes all department heads, or designated representatives, to comprise 
the Storey County Safety Committee. The Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners shall appoint a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer; positions 
which shall be documented in Addendum "A" of this manual. Annually, every department 
head shall submit a list to the Safety Director indicating the department's designated 
representative and alternate. This group shall be named the Storey County Safety 
Committee.  

The following is a written Safety Program developed by the Safety Committee of Storey 
County and adopted by the Storey County Commissioners.  

PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY AND COMPLY WITH ITS CONTENTS. 

Recognizing our obligation to provide the safest possible working conditions for our 
employees, this Safety Program is written. All employees are expected to follow the 
provisions set forth in this program as a condition of continued employment. Changes and 
additions may be added in the future, dependent upon requirements by local, state, and 
federal regulations.  

Commission Chairman Date 



4 

1. Mission Statement

The Safety Program in Storey County is designed to increase the efforts of all employees in having an injury and 
illness free workplace. All employees are expected to familiarize themselves with the requirements of this 
program. 

2. Safety Committee Structure

While all employees are ultimately responsible for safety and health in the workplace, the Storey County 
Emergency Manager or their designated representative is responsible for coordination of safety issues for the 
County and shall hold the position as Safety Director.  

The Safety Committee officers are comprised of the Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer. Officer 
positions are appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners. The Chair and Vice Chair are to be 
seated for terms of two (2) years each. The appointments are to be staggered; with the Chair being appointed in 
one year and the Vice Chair in the alternating year. The Secretary/Treasurer is a one (1) year appointment. 

There is no term limit for these positions. In the event a vacancy should occur due to employment termination, 
the Safety Director shall appoint an interim Officer who will fill the vacancy until a new vote occurs within the 
Safety Committee and the new nominee be presented to the Board of County Commissioners for approval.  

3. Meetings

Meetings of the Safety Committee shall be held quarterly, on the second Tuesdays of February, May, August, 
and November. There shall be a special meeting the second Tuesday in September for voting among Committee 
members for the officer positions that are to be presented to the Board of County Commissioners at the first 
October Board of County Commissioners’ meeting. 

Meetings are not subject to Nevada Open Meeting Law (OML). 

4. Roles and Responsibilities

SAFETY DIRECTOR:

• Establish subcommittees and assign specific tasks to individuals on the committee.
• Review and evaluate results of the Safety Program.
• Maintain and aid in compliance with up-to-date information on local, state, and federal standards, laws,

regulations, and best management practices of the Safety Program.
• Coordinate with the Human Resources Director to maintain required safety posters, a list of the required

posters for each building, where to post them, and when to update them.
• Plan and coordinate safety training for employees.
• Reply to individuals who may have safety concerns.
• Assist, as needed, in completing the following documents, “Safety Inspection Checklist”, “Accident

Investigation Form”, and “Employee Unsafe/Hazardous Conditions Report” (See Appendix A).
• Recommend corrective actions, as needed, for all reports, inspections, and investigations, and ensure

corrective actions are implemented.
• Present Safety Committee agenda items which need approval of the Storey County Board of County

Commissioners at Board of County Commissioner meetings.



5 

It is not the intention of this plan to mandate that the Safety Director personally carries out each of these duties. 
The Safety Director shall use subcommittees and technical experts to carry out the Safety Program requirements. 
It is up to the Safety Director to ensure that tasks are accomplished within a given time frame and within specific 
criteria to address safety concerns and/or issues. 

CHAIR: 

• Preside over Safety Committee meetings.
• Ensure approved agenda action items are signed and completed.

VICE CHAIR: 

• Perform all duties required of the Chair or Secretary/Treasurer, in the event of their absence.

SECRETARY/TREASURER: 

• Prepare agendas, with the coordination of the Safety Director, Chair, and Vice Chair, for
dissemination.

• Send out calendar invitations for Safety Committee meetings two weeks prior to scheduled meetings,
which shall include previous meeting minutes and new agenda items.

• Take minutes during meetings.
• Prepare and present financial updates for each quarterly meeting.
• Work with the Safety Committee Representative from the Commissioner’s Office to prepare and submit

annual Safety Committee budget requests to the Comptroller’s Office.

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR: 

• Provide general safety orientation for new employees upon hire. This training shall be documented in
personnel files.

• Coordinate training to department head level positions on the proper process to follow when a workers’
compensation injury occurs. This should include an overview of the appropriate forms, how to complete
them, and who receives them when completed.

• Coordinate with the Safety Director to maintain required safety posters, a list of the required posters for
each building, where to post them, and when to update them.

• Provide necessary forms to employees when an injury or accident occurs.
• Track special training in areas where there have been recurring injuries, OSHA reportable injuries, as

reported through submitted “Notice of Injury or Occupational Disease" (C-1) forms (See Appendix
A).



6 

DEPARTMENT HEADS: 

Each Department Head, or their qualified assigned representative, is responsible for attending all scheduled 
Safety Committee meetings. 

• Ensure safety policies and procedures are followed and enforce the rules set forth in this Safety Program.
• Ensure employees go through identified training upon their initial hire and are properly trained on

equipment in which they may operate.
• Work closely with Human Resources to ensure that employee training documents are up to date in

personnel files.
• Coordinate with the Safety Director in investigating injuries, accidents, and identifying the corrective

action necessary to prevent a similar incident from occurring.
• Assist employees, as needed, in completing the “C-1” form in the event of accident, and ensure the form

is signed and submitted to the Human Resources Department.
• Encourage employee input in reporting unsafe or hazardous conditions.
• Conduct routine inspections of the workplace and, in adherence to forms provided within this document,

assess hazardous conditions.
• Conduct department specific safety training in accordance with local, state, and federal requirements.

EMPLOYEES: 

• Comply with this Safety Program and stay informed about safety and health regulations in the workplace.
• Attend assigned training sessions.
• Ensure each task assigned can be completed in a safe manner.
• Ensure that machines and equipment are maintained in safe operating condition and not tamper with,

remove destroy, or otherwise interfere with the use of any safety device or safeguard.
• Personal protective equipment will be provided by the County and must be worn or used in any area

where it is required.
• Get help lifting any item which is bulky, awkward, or heavy which cannot be lifted safely.
• If a repetitive task causes employees discomfort, or they feel it is unsafe or unhealthy, they must report

this condition to their Department Head immediately.
• Must not engage in horseplay, roughhousing, fighting, or throwing articles.
• Must not use recreational or prescription drugs which impair function and/or alcohol in workplace.
• Immediately report to Department Heads any unsafe, unhealthful, or hazardous conditions.
• If involved in an incident, complete a “C-1” form, and submit it to the Human Resources Department.

Ensure that the medical provider completes and submits an “Employee Claim for
Compensation/Report of Initial Treatment” (C-4) form (Medical provider has this form).

• If witness to accident or injury, assist fellow employees in completing a “C-1” form.
• In case of an emergency, dial 911.

5. Safety Training

Safety education and training for employees commences at the time of employment. Prior to staff beginning any 
assigned task, supervisors must ensure that employees are provided the following instruction during new 
employee orientation as part of the “New Employee Orientation Checklist” (See Appendix A). 



7 

The County provides several different types of safety training for employees. Documentation of completed 
training courses shall be sent to the Human Resources Department and kept in personnel files. 

• A general safety orientation for new employees is provided by Human Resources     upon hire. The initial
training is to be documented on the “New Employee Orientation Checklist” form and signed by the
employee and returned to Human Resources to be retained in their personnel file.

• Specific training on how to safely perform assigned duties is provided by respective Department Heads
and/or supervisors.

• Special training when working with hazardous materials or complex types of machinery or other
equipment is provided by respective Department Heads and/or supervisors.

• Special training in areas where there have been recurring injuries, OSHA reportable injuries, shall be
tracked by Human Resources as reported to him/her through submitted “C-1” forms.

• Training in using any required personal protective equipment (e.g., respirators, hearing protection, etc.)
is provided by respective Department Heads and/or supervisors.

Additional training should be provided whenever an employee's job changes, new hazardous materials are 
introduced, new machines/tools are used, new safety protection equipment is needed, or if there are incidents of 
recurring injuries or as requested by employees. Employees that do not seem to understand proper safety 
procedures should be retrained.  

Whenever personnel are used from a temporary employment service, Department Heads must provide specialized 
training for jobs they will be performing before they begin work or as soon as possible thereafter.  

Effective safety training will result in the following benefits to the County: 

• Reduction in injuries
• Reduction in damage to property and supplies
• Reduction in retraining time
• Reduction in liability
• Encouragement for employees in asking for help
• Increased production
• Increased morale
• Decreased absenteeism
• Healthier employees

 6. Safety Rules and Discipline

NRS 618.383 dictates every employer in the State of Nevada shall establish a written Safety Program. Employees 
need to know and follow County safety rules and Department Heads must enforce them. Unsafe procedures will 
not be tolerated. Department Heads are expected to take immediate steps to correct unsafe behavior. 

General Safety Rules: 

• Comply with safety instructions.
• Report hazardous conditions.
• Follow team-lift guidelines.
• Maintain safe standards in your work area.
• Wear provided personal protective equipment.



8 

• Report all injuries and near misses immediately.

General Disciplinary Action: 

Disciplinary action will be conducted in accordance with County Policy 1001. If a Collective Bargaining 
Agreement is in place, the Department Head will follow the established steps outlined in the Agreement, ensuring 
adherence to the appropriate chain of progressive disciplinary action. (Disciplinary forms included in Appendix 
A). 

7. Identifying and Evaluating Workplace Risks
Inspection of the workplace is the primary tool to identify unsafe conditions and practices, which may include 
buildings, equipment, apparatus, vehicles, and personal protective equipment, etc.  

Department Heads are responsible for routinely inspecting all work areas and need to document their inspections 
of the workplace by using the “Safety Inspection Checklist”.  

8. Safety Communication

Employees should submit safety concerns and suggestions by completing an “Employee Unsafe/ Hazardous 
Condition Report” form and emailing it to their Department Head and Safety Director. 

The Safety Director will respond, in writing, to the employee’s submittal indicating what action has been taken. 

9. Emergency Evacuation

Employees must be familiarized with evacuation routes for their work areas. Part of the “New Employee 
Orientation Checklist” includes emergency evacuation procedures. Emergency evacuation routes shall be 
posted in a conspicuous location. The locations of fire extinguishers are identified on the evacuation plans. 

Evacuation: 

1. Find the nearest exit and leave quickly.
2. Get to a safe area.
3. Contact Department Head or supervisor.

Shelter in Place: 

1. Secure and lock doors and windows.
2. Cover windows if possible.
3. Stay away from windows and doors.
4. Do not open the door/windows until law enforcement advises.

Hazardous Materials: 

1. Close windows and doors.
2. Turn off HVAC if applicable.
3. Attempt to seal cracks around doors and windows (duct tape, cloth).



9 

10. Accident Investigations

Accidents, injuries, and near misses are to be reported immediately by completion of a “C-1” form and/or an 
“Accident Investigation Form”. The “C-1” form shall be completed by the Employee, Department Head, or 
witness; signed; and then submitted to the Human Resources Department. The “Accident Investigation Form” 
shall be completed by the Employee, Department Head, or witness and submitted to the Safety Director via email. 



10 

Appendix A 
Forms 



11 

Appointment of Officers 

The Storey County Commissioners appoint ______________________________ as Chairman, 
_______________________ as Vice Chairman, and ________________________ as Secretary/ Treasurer of the 
Storey County Safety Committee from October 1, 20____ through September 30, 20____ at the Commissioners 
Meeting dated __________________, 20_____. 

___________________________________ 
County Commissioner 

The Officers are as follows: 

Chairman: __________________________________________ 

Cell Phone: ______________________________ Email: __________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 

Vice-Chair: __________________________________________ 

Cell Phone: ______________________________ Email: __________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 

Secretary/ Treasurer: __________________________________________ 

Cell Phone: ______________________________ Email: __________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 



12 

Safety Inspection Checklist 
    Yes    No Comments 

1. All exits are unblocked and clearly marked.

2. No obstructions in passageways.

3. All electric boxes covered/ closed.

4. Proper PPE is provided and used.

5. First aid supplies available and adequate.

6. AEDs in building and functioning.

7. Fire extinguishers are maintained and clear of obstructions.

8. Flammable/ Combustible materials stored properly.

9. Hazardous material containers labeled.
(location of MSDS is known) 

10. Emergency evacuation routes posted.

11. Employee lifting procedures known.

12. Low clearance marked appropriately.

13. Machinery/ equipment/ tools/ vehicles used appropriately.

14. Machinery/ equipment/ tools/ vehicles in safe condition.

15. Machinery has guards as needed.

16. Electrical cords in good condition.

17. No trip or slip hazards present.

18. No sharp edges present.

19. Weather related hazards

20. Areas where reoccurring near misses/ injuries happen.

21. Any deviations from acceptable safe practice.

22. Other: ________________________________

23. Other: ________________________________

24. Other: ________________________________

25. Other: ________________________________

26. Other: ________________________________

27. Other: ________________________________

____________________________________________________ _________________________ 
Signature Date 



13 

Accident Investigation Form 
(To be completed by Supervisor) 

Injury 
Near Miss 

Employee Name: ___________________________________________________________ 
Employee Number:   _____________________ Job Position: ________________________ 
Date and Time of Accident: ___________________________________________________________ 
Location of Accident: ___________________________________________________________ 
Witness(es): ___________________________________________________________ 
First Aid given:    Yes     No   Paramedics called: Yes No 

How did this accident occur (please use separate page if needed)? 

What were the cause(s) of the accident, if known? 

What recommendations do you have to prevent reoccurrences? 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Department Head Signature Date 

Completed By Safety Director: 
Description of Corrective Action Taken:  

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Safety Director Signature Date 



14 

Employee Unsafe/ Hazardous Condition Report 

This form is for use by employees who wish to provide a hazardous condition suggestion or report of an unsafe 
workplace condition or practice.  

Name (optional): _____________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
Department: ___________________________________________ 

Description of unsafe or hazardous condition: 

Location of condition: 

Causes or other contributing factors: 

Employee’s Recommendation for Solution: 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Department Head Signature Date 

Completed By Safety Director: 
Investigation: 

Corrective Action Completed: 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Safety Director Signature Date



15 

New Employee Orientation Checklist 

Name: _____________________________________ Department: ____________________________ 
Job Title: _____________________________________ Start Date:  ____________________________ 

The New Employee Orientation Checklist is designed to assist in acquainting a new employee with the workplace and 
work procedures. The items on his form should be completed during the first week the employee is on the job. Please 
initial each item as it is completed on the line in front of it. If an item is not applicable, write “n/a” and initial. Return this 
form to the Human Resources Office no later than: ___________________ (two weeks after start date). 

SUPERVISOR 
General  
________ Introduce new employee to staff in department. 
________ Show location of restrooms, lunch area, parking, bulletin board(s). 
________ Tour the work area and facilities. 
________ Explain work schedule start/ end. 
________ Explain break times, lunch time, and duration.  
________ Discuss back-up coverage – who covers for them and who they cover for. 
________ Cover procedure for reporting absence, tardiness, sickness, etc.  
________ Explain requesting leave in Time & Attendance. 
________ Discuss leaving work area during work hours. 
________ Stress importance of keeping department and human resources up to date on address and 

phone number. 
________ Cover paydays – how, when, and where employee will be paid – availability of direct 

deposit. 
________ Explain dress guidelines, uniforms, and employee’s responsibility.  
________ Review the chain of command and introduce employee to supervisors in the chair 

hierarchy. 
________ Review accident reporting procedures.  
________ Introduce safety representative.  
________ Review emergency evacuation routes and procedures. 
________ Review internal department policies and procedures, including safety rules. 
________ Indicate location of department copy of policies manual. 
________ Review county’s safety manual. 
________ Indicate location and purpose of MSDS’s (Material Safety Data Sheet). 
________ Remind employee to address any questions or concerns to the supervisor. 
________ Introduce to members of other departments the employee might encounter in normal 

course of work. 
Job 
________ Provide current copy of job description delineating primary job responsibilities and 

assignments (supervisor & employee must sign and return to Human Resources office). 
________ Confidentiality form with policy. 
________ Explain kinds of tasks not performed without specific directions. 
________ Define performance expectations – work standards expected, quality and quantity of 

work, and performance evaluation procedure. 



16 

New Employee Orientation Checklist Continued

________ Review blank performance evaluation form. 

________ Introduce new employee to person(s) who will train them. 
_________ Explain check in/out procedures for tools and supplies; discuss where/ how to get office supplies 

and purchasing procedures. 
_________ Demonstrate how to use multiline phone. 
_________ Discuss importance of good customer service in person or on the phone. 
_________ Explain how to answer the phone, how to take messages, and where to leave them. 
_________ Demonstrate the proper procedure to respond to an angry citizen. 
_________ Cover care and maintenance of equipment or vehicles. 
_________ Clarify computer use/ restrictions, no expectation of privacy. 
_________ Other (Please specify) ____________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Employee’s Signature  Date 

____________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Supervisor’s Signature  Date 



17 

STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
    FORM:      1001F 

      CREATED: 01/06/2019 
     REVISED:  8/21/18 – 12/04/18 

       AUTHORITY:    BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:          PAW 

Documented Verbal Warning 
Today’s Date: _____________________________ Department: _______________________________ 

Date of documented verbal warning: _____________________________________________________ 

Name of employee receiving verbal warning: ______________________________________________ 

Name of employee/ supervisor issuing verbal warning: ______________________________________ 

Detailed explanation of the performance-related behavior(s) or job-related behavior(s): 

Department or county policies violated: 

Details of specific chances that must occur to correct the subject behavior. Details must be SMART 
(Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and Timely). This section should specify what exactly do I 
want to achieve; where; how; when; and with whom. 

Timeframe for these changes to occur (even if repeated from question 8 above). 

Periodic review needed:  yes no If yes, what frequency and duration of reviews: _____________ 

Consequences if the required change does not occur: 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 
Note: By employee’s signature above, receipt of this verbal warning is acknowledged but agreement with the action taken is not necessarily indicated.  



18 

STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
    FORM:      1001F1 

      CREATED: 01/06/2019 
     REVISED:  8/21/18 – 12/04/18 

       AUTHORITY:    BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:          PAW 

 

Written Reprimand 
Today’s Date: _____________________________ Department: _______________________________ 

Date of written reprimand: _____________________________________________________________ 

Name of employee receiving written reprimand: ____________________________________________ 

Name of employee/ supervisor issuing written reprimand: ____________________________________ 

Detailed explanation of the performance-related behavior(s) or job-related behavior(s): 

Department or county policies violated: 

Details of specific chances that must occur to correct the subject behavior. Details must be SMART 
(Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and Timely). This section should specify what exactly do I 
want to achieve; where; how; when; and with whom. 

Timeframe for these changes to occur (even if repeated from question 8 above). 

Periodic review needed:  yes no If yes, what frequency and duration of reviews: _____________ 

Consequences if the required change does not occur: 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 
Note: By employee’s signature above, receipt of this verbal warning is acknowledged but agreement with the action taken is not necessarily indicated 



19 

STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
    FORM:      1001F3 

      CREATED: 01/06/2009 
     REVISED:  1/02/18 – 12/04/18 

       AUTHORITY:    BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:          PAW 

Last Chance Performance/ Behavior Agreement 
Effective _____________________ (date), this agreement is entered into as a condition of continuing 
employment for )_______________________ (employee’s name), hereinafter “employee,” in his/her 
position as ______________________________ (employee’s current job title) with Storey County, 
hereinafter, “employer.” In lieu of terminating his/her employment, employee agrees to refrain from 
inappropriate conduct and/ or performance standards as follows: employee understands that his/ her 
continued employment is dependent upon him/ her meeting the conditions set forth in this agreement and 
demonstrating effective performance of his/ her duties. Failure to do so will result in immediate 
termination of employment, subject to all due process rights to which the employee would be entitled but 
not those denied by the agreement.  

Check all boxes that apply and provide explanation. 

Employee will be suspended without pay from ________________ through _________________, 
20____.   (See section 9 below) 

Employee must undergo training and/or professional development. That training and/or professional 
development specifically includes:  

Employee must participate in an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to address job-related matters 
and / or consistence with business necessity. Employee agrees to allow Employer to receive 
confirmation that terms of the EAP assignment have been satisfied. The specific job-related matters 
and/ or consistence with business necessity include: 

Employee must participate in consultation with Human Resources office and/ or his/her supervisor to 
improve behavior or performance. Specifically, the employee will:  



20 

In addition: 
1. Employee will be expected to report to work following suspension, if applicable, at his/her

regularly scheduled time and shift after the assigned suspension and be able and prepared to work.
Return to work will occur on: _________________________________ (Date/ Time)

2. Employee will follow all verbal and written policies, procedures, directives, and instructions
communicated from his/her supervisor or the department head. If s/he disagrees for any reason
with these directives, s/he is required to follow the directives and later discuss his/her concerns with
the supervisor or department head, except when work safety is a concern. Where work safety is a
concern, s/he is required to report this issue to the supervisor, department head, and Human
Resources office immediately and before complying with the directive.

3. Employee understands that in an effort to assist him/her in making the necessary performance
improvements, his/her work will be closely monitored and supervised and s/he will accept such
supervision as a necessary part of his/her continued employment.

4. It is understood and agreed that the Employee’s status is “at-will” during the term of this
agreement and that the Employee can be terminated at any time and for any reason or for no
reason at all, and with no rights given to due process or appeal, including that which may be
contained in policy or in a collective bargaining agreement.

5. Employee understands that this Agreement is not a contract or guarantee of continued
employment for any specified period of time.

6. The Union, if applicable, and Employee waive all rights set forth in a collective bargaining
agreement and otherwise to challenge through the grievance procedure or other means any
termination or other discipline imposed under the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise
provided by law.

7. Employee understands and agrees that s/he has been afforded 48 hours to consider this Agreement
and that signing the Agreement was of his/her own free will and with the benefit of representation,
if so desired.

8. This Agreement shall be valid and binding for two years from the date of its signing, unless a
shorter period of time is expressly specified in this Agreement.

9. Employee’s disciplinary record will remain in effect during the entire duration of this Agreement.
Following the term of this Agreement, the disciplinary record will remain in effect in accordance
with the terms of the Employer’s personnel policies or the applicable collective bargaining
agreement.

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee’s Department Head Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Direct Supervisor, if other than Department Head Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Representative(s), if applicable Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Human Resource Director Date

CC.: Employee’s Personnel File 



21 

NOTICE OF INJURY OR OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE 
(Incident Report) 

Pursuant to NRS 616C.015 

Name of Employer: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 Name of Employee  Social Security Number Telephone Number 

 Date of Accident            Time of Accident             Place where accident occurred (if applicable)
 (if applicable)    (if applicable) 

 What is the nature of the injury or occupational disease? List any body parts involved: 

Briefly describe accident or circumstances of occupational disease: 
(Note: if you are claiming an occupational disease, indicate the date on which employee first became aware connection between condition and employment) 

 Name of Witnesses: 

 Did the employee        ___Yes If yes, when (date & time)?       Has the employee  ___ Yes          If yes, when (date & time)? 
 leave work because   returned to work? ___ No 
 of the injury or         ___ No 
 occupational disease? 
 Was first aid      ____ Yes If yes, by whom?  Name and address of treating physician, if applicable or known 
 provided?          ____ No 

 Did the accident happen  
 in the normal course ______ Yes 
 of work? (if applicable) ______ No 

 Was anyone  ______ Yes Names of others involved 
 else involved?  ______ No 

MY EMPLOYER/INSURER MAY HAVE MADE ARRANGEMENTS TO DIRECT ME TO A HEALTH CARE PROVIDED FOR MEDICAL 
TREATMENT OF MY INDUSTRIAL INJURY OR OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE. I HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED OF THESE ARRANGEMENTS. 

__________________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
Supervisor’s Signature Date Signature of Injured or Disabled Employee Date 

TO FILE A CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION, SEE REVERSE SIDE, SECTION ENTITLED, CLAIM FOR 
COMPENSATION (FORM C-4). 

 For assistance with Workers’ Compensation Issues you may contact the State of Nevada Office for Consumer Health Assistance 
Toll Free: 1-888-333-1597   Web site:  http://dhhs.nv.gov/Programs/CHA/ E-mail: cha@govcha.nv.gov 

Employee should sign, date and retain a copy. C-1 (Rev 02/20) 
Original to Employer, Copy to Employee  

http://dhhs.nv.gov/Programs/CHA/
mailto:cha@govcha.nv.gov


Heat Illness Prevention Plan 

Heat Illness Regulation - Pursuant to Section 6(3) of RI 31-24AP, the following must be 
added to the written safety program: 

• The provision of potable water, as described in 29 C.F.R. § 1926.Sl(a)(l). As used in
this paragraph, "potable water" has the meaning ascribed to it in 29 C.F.R. §
1910.14l(a)(2).

• The provision of a rest break for an employee who exhibits signs or symptoms of
heat illness.

• The provision of means of cooling for employees.
• Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph and to the extent practicable,

monitoring by the person designated by the employer, or the designee of that
person, of working conditions that may create occupational exposure to heat
illness. Such monitoring is not required when an employee of the employer is
loading or unloading a motor vehicle which operates on public highways of this
State.

• Identification and mitigation of any work process that may generate additional heat
or humidity.

• Training of employees of the employer as necessary to reasonably mitigate the risk
of occupational exposure to heat illness.

• Procedures for responding to a medical emergency.
o One-time, written job hazard analysis of all job categories
o The Safety Director is responsible for maintaining the written safety

manual
o Establish measures from heat-related exposure
o Training for employees on mitigating heat-illness

Job Hazard Analysis 

• A list of all job classifications of the employer in which the majority of employees
in those classifications have occupational exposure to heat illness for more than
30 minutes of any 60-minute period, not including breaks.

• A list of all tasks and procedures, or groups of closely related tasks and
procedures, performed by employees of the employer.

o In which occupational exposure to heat illness may occur; and which are
performed by employees in the job classifications that are in included in
the list required by paragraph (a)

A Job hazard analysis should also include: 



• Identification of working conditions that may cause occupational exposure
to heat illness; and

• Identification of measures to mitigate or eliminate the heat illness hazard if
identified. The precedence and effectiveness of hazard control is the
following:
o Engineering controls,
o Administrative controls, and
o Personal protective equipment.

In conducting a job hazard analysis pursuant to this section, the employer shall assess the 
working conditions of a job without consideration of whether an employee in the job being 
analyzed would have access to water, rest or shade. This is because access to water, rest, 
and/or shade are considered mitigation or corrective steps as it relates to occupational 
exposure to heat illness. equipment of those job classifications, and their work 
environment. Once that information is listed out, you will then work on identifying where 
there are working conditions that may cause occupational exposure to heat illness, and 
how best to mitigate or eliminate the heat illness hazard if identified. How it is presented is 
entirely up to the employer and may change depending on the quantity of job 
classifications, complexity of closely related tasks and procedures, etc. 

A job hazard analysis, under this regulation, focuses on the relationship between job 
classifications of workers, the tasks and procedures of those job classifications, the tools 
and 

To determine if there is an "occupational exposure to heat illness," the employer should use 
the definition in Section 4 of Rl3 l-24AP and take into account any working conditions that 
create the reasonable likelihood that heat illness could occur, including without limitation: 

• Air temperature.

• Relative humidity.

• Radiant heat from the sun or other sources.

• Conductive heat from the ground or other sources.

• The movement of air.

• The severity and duration of workloads; and

• Protective clothing and personal protective equipment worn by an employee.



Guidance can be found in resources and publications such as: OSHA Heat Stress 
Calculator, OSHA- NIO I-I Heath Safety Tool App. National Weather Service Heat Forecast 
Tools, American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH) Threshold 
Limit Values & Biological Exposure Indices, and/or other applicable consensus standards. 

Engineering Practice Controls 

Engineering controls focus on the elimination or minimization of the hazard. Employers 
should consider the following types of engineering controls: 

• Use air conditioning.

• Increase general ventilation.

• Provide cooling fans.

• Run local exhaust ventilation where heat is produced (e.g., laundry vents).

• Use reflective shields to block radiant heat.

• Insulate hot surfaces (e.g., furnace walls).

• Stop leaking steam.

• Provide shade for outdoor work sites.

Administrative and Work Practice Controls 

Employers can also utilize the following administrative and work practice controls: 

• Schedule hot jobs for cooler parts of the workday; schedule routine
maintenance and repair work during cooler seasons of the year when possible.

• Provide adequate, cool drinking water on the worksite that is easily accessible
and permit employees to take frequent rest and water breaks.

• Use relief workers and reduce physical demands of the job.

• Use work/rest schedules.

Personal Protective Clothing and Equipment 

Employers should consider the following types of protective clothing: 

• Provide hats for work outdoors in the sun.

• For indoor work, use loosely worn reflective clothing designed to deflect
radiant heat, such as vests, aprons, or jackets.

• Provide cooling vests and water-cooled/dampened garments, which may be
effective under high temperature and low humidity conditions. However, be



aware that cooling vests can become an insulator when they reach the 
body's temperature. 

• In environments where respirator usage is necessary, consult with an
industrial hygienist to determine the appropriate clothing to prevent heat
stress while still protecting the workers.

• Consider the use of dermal patches for monitoring core temperature to
better identify when workers need to be removed from the work area.

• Consider the use of heart rate monitoring to better identify when workers
need to be removed from the work area. Both sustained (180 bpm minus age)
and recovery (120 bpm after a peak work effort) heart rates are
recommended guidelines for limiting heat strain.

Health Risk Factors and Acclimatization 

Employers should also consider the following acclimatization protocols and inform 
employees of health risk factors: 

• Allow new workers to get accustomed to hot working environments by using
a staggered approach over 7-14 days. For example, new workers should begin
work with 20% of the normal workload and time spent in the hot
environment, and then gradually increase the time over a 7-14 day period.
The same should be done for workers returning from an absence of three or
more days, starting with 50% of the normal workload and time spent in the
hot environment, then staging acclimatization over three consecutive days.

• Advise workers that certain medications can increase the risk of heat stress.
These include:

o Amphetamines - sometimes prescribed for narcolepsy or
attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD),

o Diuretics - water pills,

o Antihypertensives - blood pressure medication,

o Anticholinergics - for treatment of chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD), and

o Antihistamines - allergy medications

• Alert workers to the dangers of using illegal drugs and alcohol in hot work
environments. Illegal amphetamines, such as methamphetamine, are
particularly hazardous when heat stress is present.



• Alert workers that some conditions, such as pregnancy, fever, gastrointestinal
illness, heart disease, and obesity, may increase the risk of heat-related illness.

• Encourage workers to consult a doctor or pharmacist if they have questions
about whether they are at increased risk for heat-related illness because of
health conditions they have and/or medications they take.

Best Practices 

• Utilizing a satellite or cell phone (depending on service needs of the area) to
contact the employee at the start of their shift and discuss the following:

o Fitness for duty,

o Availability of water and other needed materials,

o The necessity to take breaks as needed, and

o The work location/ job task for the day.

• Every 30 to 60 minutes contact the worker and perform a status check.

o The frequency dictated by the information contained in the employer's
BA (job hazard analysis).

• Work environment, type of work, etc.

• If an employee fails to respond to a status check:

o Wait a prescribed amount of time and make a second attempt.

• This will be identified in the monitoring plan.

o If the employee fails to respond on the second attempt - initiate the
provisions of the employer's written safety program related to
emergency medical response.

o If the employee returns the call much later after emergency medical
response has initiated and has therefore not followed the employer's
policy - the employer will be expected to follow their progressive
disciplinary policy as outlined in their written safety program A
6l8.540(1)(e).



Training 

• Provide information to enable each employee to receive the training to
recognize the hazards of heat illness; and

• Train each employee receiving the training in the procedures to be followed
to minimize the hazards of heat illness.

• All employees identified in the job classifications in the employer's job
hazard analysis as having occupational exposure to heat illness for more
than 30 minutes of any 60-minute period not including breaks.

• Any line-level supervision, foreman, lead, etc. role that has direct
involvement with the work performed by the identified job classifications.

o If the lead, foreman, supervisor, etc. are identified in the job
classifications in the employer's job hazard analysis as having
occupational exposure to heat illness for more than 30 minutes of any
60-minute period not including breaks than they are required to be
trained.

• Any staff designated to be in a safety role for their employer who may be
responsible for training others or conducting jobsite inspections.

Employers are required to provide training to all employees before performing their work 
duties pursuant to their established written safety program (See NAC 618.540).  

While some standards and regulations have annual retraining requirements, this regulation 
does not impose retraining requirements upon employers. However, it is considered a best 
practice to retrain employees each year. Compliance issues may arise during an inspection 
if employees and employer representatives, despite having training documentation, are 
unable to explain to compliance staff how the employer is addressing the hazard of heat. 
This may be viewed as a lack of training or that the training provided was ineffective. 

For employees who work indoors in a climate-controlled environment, including, without 
limitation, a motor vehicle with a properly functioning climate control system, employers 
are not required to perform the activities in sections 5 through 8 of R131-24AP, which 
include, conducting a job hazard analysis, designating a person to perform certain 
functions, creating a plan in the Written Safety Program, and providing training.  

If the climate control system becomes non-functional or does not effectively address the 
hazard of heat illness exposure, the employer must make a good faith effort to reestablish 
an effective climate control system as soon as practicable, and until the climate control 
system is rendered effective, implement measures that address potential hazards that 
could cause heat illness for employees. 



A climate-controlled environment is an indoor space where temperature and humidity 
levels are actively regulated and maintained within a range, often achieved through cooling 
and dehumidification systems, that effectively addresses the hazard of heat illness. 

The effectiveness of a climate control system will depend on various factors such as heat-
producing equipment, ambient temperatures, individual workload, etc. Employers may 
utilize existing consensus standards and references such as, but not limited to, the ACGIH 
Threshold Limit Values & Biological Exposure Indices, the CDC: Criteria for a 
Recommended Standard: Occupational Exposure to Heat and Hot Environments, the A 
Sl/ASSP A I 0.50-2024 Standard for Heat Stress Management In Construction, or other 
technical publications to ensure the hazard of heat illness is effectively addressed through 
climate control. 

Per Section 6(2) of R131-24AP, the employer must, at minimum, do the following when an 
employee is experiencing signs or symptoms of heat illness that require an emergency 
medical response: 

1. Contact emergency medical services (or ensure they were contacted),
2. Provide all information necessary to ensure that emergency medical services are

able to reach an employee, and
3. If necessary and appropriate, the employee is transported to a location where

emergency medical services are able to reach the employee.



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding
upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but not limited to, the
following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement programming, Senate bill(s)
regarding regional planning Storey, Washoe, Lyon, Carson, Douglas, and cities, Daly;
SB78 as potentially related to the Comstock Historic District Commission; AB77 tax
abatement; AB32 V&T Railway; AB538 GOED board members; AB528 Green energy
abatement; SB410 health benefits; SB364 railroad abatements; bills supported by the
Nevada Association of Counties (NACO); and bills proposed by the Governor and
legislative leadership since the last board meeting.

• Recommended motion: I [county commissioner] motion to direct county staff and
lobbyists to represent Storey County on known BDRs, bills, and other potential
legislation affecting Storey County as follows: _________.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: Other Bills in NELIS:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bills/List

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

        25



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/1/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For Consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. Bunting Magnetics Co. – Out of County / 500 S. Spencer Rd ~ Newton, KS
• B. John Curran LLC – Out of County / 415 Keystone Dr. ~ Dayton, NV
• C. Nuwave International Industries Inc. – Contractor / 1875 Coronado Ave ~ Signal Hill,

CA
• D. SBI Roofing – Contractor / 4201 Trailblazer Loop ~ Roseville, CA
• E. Silver Sierra Cleaning LLC – Out of County / 4275 W th St. Apt 351 ~ Reno, NV
• F. Tahoe Brothers Construction LLC – Contractor / 9475 Double R Blvd Ste. 10 ~ Reno,

NV

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to
the new business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       26



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 
 

 

 

 110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935  
 P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 
 

 

To:  Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office       March 24, 2025 

 Austin Osborne, County Manager       Via Email 

 

Fr: Ashley Mead  

 

Please add the following item(s) to the April 01, 2025  COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

 
A. Bunting Magnetics Co. – Out of County / 500 S. Spencer Rd ~ Newton, KS 

B. John Curran LLC – Out of County / 415 Keystone Dr. ~ Dayton, NV 

C. Nuwave International Industries Inc. – Contractor / 1875 Coronado Ave ~ Signal Hill, CA 

D. SBI Roofing – Contractor / 4201 Trailblazer Loop ~ Roseville, CA 

E. Silver Sierra Cleaning LLC – Out of County / 4275 W th St. Apt 351 ~ Reno, NV 

F. Tahoe Brothers Construction LLC – Contractor / 9475 Double R Blvd Ste. 10 ~ Reno, NV 

 
Ec: Community Development   Planning Department    Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office   Comptroller’s Office  


	BOCC Meeting - Agenda - 4-1-2025 (3-26-2025 12 02 45 PM).pdf
	BOCC Meeting - Meeting Packet - 4-1-2025 (3-26-2025 12 15 20 PM)
	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the April 1, 2025, meeting.
	Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes from the March 4, 2025, meeting.
	For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A.	Brite Glass Inc. – Contractor  / 100 Gentry Way # C7 ~ Reno, NV
B.	Build Group, Inc. – Contractor / 2121 N California Blvd Ste. 301 ~Walnut Creek, Ca
C.	Crown Lift Trucks – Out of Cou
	Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel policies 301 Personnel Office Role in the Hiring Process; 302 Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible List to Vacant Positions; 303 Job Announcements; 304 Ap
	Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Tentative Budgets.
	Consideration and possible approval to proclaim April 13, 2025, through April 19, 2025, as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week.
	Consideration and possible approval of an expenditure not to exceed $9,000 to the Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable property situated within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in Storey County for FY 2025-2026
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business Development to reallocate $1,500 of budgeted and available funds from the Professional Services account to sponsor the Western Nevada Development District Summit to be held in Virgini
	Consideration and possible approval authorizing Storey County staff to reallocate $32,360.50 originally allocated to cover the costs of an elevator design at St. Mary’s Art Center (SMAC) to instead be allocated to address the structural issues identified
	Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Fire District Tentative Budgets.
	Review and discussion on the 2025-2026 Storey County Water and Sewer Tentative Budgets.
	For consideration and possible approval of the second reading for On-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Jennifer Stoops, Maddy’s Place LLC, 55 North C Street, Virginia City, NV.
	Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout Storey County.
	Consideration and  possible approval of the Storey County Safety Manual, Annex B "Heat Illness Prevention Plan" as prepared by the Safety Committee.
	Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement programming, Senate bill
	For Consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
A.	Bunting Magnetics Co. – Out of County / 500 S. Spencer Rd ~ Newton, KS
B.	John Curran LLC – Out of County / 415 Keystone Dr. ~ Dayton, NV
C.	Nuwave International Industries




